VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT Page 1

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590 Case
CRIME REPORT 18-1786
Offenses Description Fel/Misd | Date Occurred Time Occurred |Incident #
69 PC Obstruct/Resist Exec Off Felony | 02/13/2018 1940 1802130162
148(B) PC Take Non-firearm From Po Felony [poteRr eported Time Reported
7 02/13/2018 1940
=
% Related Cases
=
&
(=) Date Printed Time Printed Printed By
03/19/2019 13:18:53 2107
Latitude Longitude
38.105080 -122.256540
Location Beat Area Dispaosition Dispo Date
415 Carolina St, Vallejo, CA 94590 6 603
Location Type Location of Entry Method of Entry Point of Entry Alarm System Means of Attack (Robbery)
Street/Highway
Victim Drivers License Cell Phone Email
McMahon, Ryan #702 B
Residence Address Notified of Victim Rights| Residence Phone DOB Age Sex Race
111 Amador St, Vallejo, CA 94590 No [ M
Business Name and Address Business Phone Height Wt Hair |Eyes
Vallejo Police Department, 111 Amador St, Vallejo, CA 707-648-4321
Assistance Rendered/Victim Disposition Transporting Agency | Means of Attack (Assaults)
Description of Injuries Other Information
Witness Drivers License Cell Phone Email
Residence Address Residence Phone DOB Age Sex Race
Business Name and Address Business Phone Height Wt Hair |Eyes
Suspect Action Taken Charges
Foster, Ronnell Diangelo 69 PC, 148(B) PC
Residence Address Residence Phone DOB Age Sex Race
Transient, Vallejo, CA 94590 [ 11/18/1984 | 33 M |B
Business Name and Address Business Phone Height Wt Hair |Eyes
6 190 BLK | BRO
Identifying Features Build: Heavy Complexion: Dark Facial Hair: Goatee Cell Phone Drivers License Arrest Number
Clothes: NO SHIRT, RED SHORTS, GREEN FISHING HAT
X Val Damaged
Aliases
Cat Daddy, Jamar Polk, Ronell Mi Cat daddy, Ronnell Foster
Status Vehicle Make and Model License/State VIN
g
-
S
=
=
-
Prepared By Date Assisted By Approved By Date
2 680 - Rose, Kevin 02/13/2018 571 - Caitham, Josh 569 - Mustard, Mat 01/23/2019
=
O | Routed To Date Routed To Date Notes
I-L: Detective Bureau
() Detective Bureau
Detective Bureau
Detective Bureau

VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT CONTROL DOCUMENT



. VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT Page 2
p&‘ﬁﬁQ 111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590 Case
CRIME REPORT 18-1786
Drivers License Cell Phone Email
I I
Residence Address Residence Phone DOB A.ge S.ex Iilce
Business Name and Address Business Phone Height “i_ Hair |Eyes
Witness Drivers License Cell Phone Email
I | I
Residence Address Residence Phone DOB .—\.ge S.ex R.ace
| |
Business Name and Address Business Phone Iﬁht “.t Hai E‘ﬁ
Witness Drivers License Cell Phone Email -
I I
Residence Address Residence Phone DOB A.ge S.ex R.ace
I I |
Business Name and Address Business Phone Height “.t Hai Eyes
Mentioned - Other Drivers License Cell Phone Email -
I I
Residence Address Residence Phone DOB .‘-\.ge S.ex R.ace
| ||
Business Name and Address Business Phone Wt Hair |Eyes

Mentioned - Other Drivers License Cell Phone Email
Residence Address Residence Phone DOB Age Sex Race
Business Name and Address Business Phone Wt Hair |Eyes

Mentioned - Other Drivers License Cell Phone Email

I

Residence Address Residence Phone DOB liace
|

Business Name and Address Business Phone Height E\i
Mentioned - Other Drivers License Cell Phone Email

Residence Address Residence Phone DOB A.ge Slex Iilce
I [ |

Business Name and Address Business Phone Height “.t Hair |Eyes
Mentioned - Other Drivers License Cell Phone Email

|

Residence Address Residence Phone DOB Age S.ex Race
I

Business Name and Address Business Phone Height Wt Hair |Eyes
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VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590

CRIME REPORT

Page 3

Case
18-1786

Mentioned - Other

Drivers License

Cell Phone

Email

Residence Address Residence Phone DOB A.ge Slex R.ace
Business Name and Address Business Phone Height Wt Hair |Eyes
Mentioned - Other Drivers License Cell Phone Email

I [

Residence Address Residence Phone DOB .—\.ge S.ex Race
I [

Business Name and Address Business Phone Height Wt Hair

Eyes
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VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

Page 4
111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
CRIME REPORT - PROPERTY 18-1786
ID No. Status/Disposition Praperty Description Value |Val Recovered | Val Damaged
1 Evidence 663-1 - 1 - ONE(1) TASER RECORDING FROM
OFFICER R. MCLAUGHLIN'S TASER CAMERA.
2 Evidence 664-1 -1 - OFC D. MCLAUGHLIN'S TASER
CAM FOOTAGE OF INCIDENT
3 Evidence 570-1 - 1 Taser Axon - BODY CAMERA
FOOTAGE
4 Evidence 638-1 - 1 - CD- OFFICER BLAIN INTERVIEW
5 | Evidence 571-1- 1 - | ¥ TERVIEW-DVD
6 Evidence 588-1-1 Axon - TASER AXON BODY CAMERA
FOOTAGE OF CONTACT WITH ||
7 Evidence 2053-1-1-2053-1 BURGENDY HEAD PHONES
(P17)
8 Evidence 2053-2 -1-2053-2 BLK AND RED PIRATES BB
CAP (P16)
9 Evidence 2053-3 - 1 -2053-3 BLUE HEADPHONES (P 21)
ON THE SIDEWALK OF CAROLINA STREET
10 Evidence 2053-4 -1 -2053-4 HASH OIL FROM FOSTER’S
POCKET REMOVED PRIOR TO MY ARRIVAL
11 Evidence 2053-5 -1-2053-5 SUSPECTED MARIJUANA
FROM FOSTER’S POCKET REMOVED PRIOR
TO MY ARRIVAL
12 Evidence 2053-7 - 1 - 2053-7 METH PIPE FROM
FOSTER’S POCKET REMOVED PRIOR TO MY
ARRIVAL
13 Evidence 2053-6 - 1 - 2053-6 TASER CARTRIDGE (P 11)
14 Evidence 2053-8 -1-2053-8 LIGHTER (P 19) NEAR THE
BICYCLE ON CAROLINA STREET
15 Evidence 2053-9 -1 -2053-9 TASER FROM MCMAHON
(X26P)
16 Evidence 2053-10 -1 -2053-10 TASER GREEN DOOR
HALF (P 14) IN THE MIDDLE OF CAROLINA
STREET
17 Evidence 2053-11 -1-2053-11 TASER DART W/ WIRE (P
13) IN THE MIDDLE OF CAROLINA STREET
18 Evidence 2053-12 -1-2053-12 TASER WIRE IN
WALKWAY ON WEST SIDE OF 415 CAROLINA
(P1)
19 Evidence 2053-13 -1-2053-13 CELL PHONE WHITE
COVER (P2) IN WALKWAY 415 CAROLINA
20 Evidence 2053-14 - 1-2053-14 TASER DART (P9) NEAR
FOSTER
21 Evidence 2053-15 -1-2053-15 EXPENDED BULLET (P10
) NEXT TO FOSTER

VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT CONTROL DOCUMENT




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
CRIME REPORT - PROPERTY

Page 5

18-1786

33

34
35

36

37

38

Status/Disposition

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence
Evidence/Returned To Owner

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Praperty Description

2053-16 -1 -2053-16 NEOSPORIN. MAMBA
(5), NOW + LATER, MAMBA WRAPPER,
CARMEX REMOVED FROM FOSTER'S
POCKETS BEFORE MY ARRIVAL

2053-17 -1-2053-17-US CURRENCY .25
REMOVED FROM FOSTER'S POCKET BEFORE
MY ARRIVAL

2053-18 -1 -2053-18 TASER GREEN DOOR
HALF (P15) IN THE MIDDLE OF CAROLINA
STREET

2053-19 -1-2053-19 BLACK CELL PHONE ZTE
UNDER BIKE ON CAROLINA STREET

2053-20 -1 -2053-20 GSRKIT

2053-21 -1-2053-21 SWABS OF FOSTER -
BLANK. BUCCAL, FACE LEFT AND RIGHT
HANDS

2053-22 - 1-2053-22 (7) FC .45 AUTO
CASINGS

2053-23 - 1-2053-23 (S) FOSTER'S BLACK
BICYCLE ON CAROLINA STREET

2053-24 - 1-2053-24-KEY ON THE NORTH
SIDEWALK OF CAROLINA STREET

618-1 - 1 Dvd - OFC. BAHOU INTERVIEW

2053-25 - 1 - 2053-25 OFFICER MCMAHON
FIREARM. GLOCK. MODEL 21, 45CAL , S/N#

. (1) MAGAZINE AND (5) CARTRIDGES

(1) ROUND FrROM CHAMEER [

650-1 - 1 Axon Axon Body Cam - AXON VIDEO
OF NEIGHBORHOOD CANVAS

650-2 - 1 Crime Scene Log - CRIME SCENE LOG

667-1 - 1 Axon - AXON FOOTAGE OF THE
CROWD

2053-26 - 1 - 2053-26 BLUE AND WHITE
SHOES, ONE WHITE SOCK, AND ONE LEFT
SOCK

2053-27 - 1 - 2053-27 BLUE JEANS, BLACK
BELT, AND BADGE CLIP

662-1 -1 - 662-1-STREAMLIGHT SL20HL

FLASHLIGHT COLLECTED BY OFFICER
BAHOU

Value

Val Recavered | Val Damaged

VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT CONTROL DOCUMENT




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
CRIME REPORT - PROPERTY

Page 6

18-1786

40

41

43

44

45

46

47

48

49

50

51

58
59

Status/Disposition

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence
Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Praperty Description

2053-28 - 1 - 2053-28-6 BULLETS FROM
FOSTER-RIGHT SWEATSHIRT SLEEVE. RIGHT
SHIRT. TABLE NEAR FOSTER NECK, RIGHT
CHEST CAVITY, LEFT CHEST WALL AND
RIGHT TEMPLE

2035-29 - 1 - 2053-29-CLEAR COLORED
EARRINGS (1 MISSING THE BACK)

2053-30 - 1 - 2053-30-2 PLASTIC BINDLES.
ONE WITH WHITE POWDER AND ONE WITH
WHITE CRYSTALS.

2053-31-1 - 2053-31-FOSTER'S BLOOD

2053-32 -1 - 2053-32-GOLD COLORED
NECKLACE WITH MEDALLION

2053-33 - 1 - 2053-33-2 PIECES OF MAMBA
FROM FOSTERS LEFT FRONT POCKET

2053-34 -1 - 2053-34-FOSTER'S LEFT AND
RIGHT HAND FINGERNAIL CLIPPINGS

2053-35-1 - 2053-35-FOSTER'S RED PLAID
BOXERS

2053-36 - 1 - 2053-36-FOSTERS BLACK
SWEATSHIRT

2053-37 -1 - 2053-37-FOSTER'S BLACK T-
SHIRT

2053-38 - 1 - 2053-38-FOSTER'S WHITE TANK
TOP

2053-39 -1 - 2053-39-PHOTOGRAPHS OF
SCENE

2053-40 - 1 - 2053-40-PHOTOGRAPHS OF
AUTOPSY

638-2-1-CD- FF- ENG 21
INTERVIEW

680-1 - 1 Dvdr - STATEMENT OF MCMAHON
#702

571-2 - 1 - VIDEO 730 SACRAMENTO
680-2 - 1 - AUDIO RECORDING OF.

628-1 - 1 Kodak Cd-R - TOTAL STATION MAP
618-2 - 1 Dvd - ENHANCED BODY CAMERA
VIDEO

2126-1 - 1 Ktvu News Rpt - KTVU NEWS RPT
486-1 - 1 - CRIME SCENE SKETCH

Value

Val Recavered | Val Damaged

VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT CONTROL DOCUMENT




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
CRIME REPORT - PROPERTY

Page 7

18-1786

61

63

64

Status/Disposition

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Evidence

Praperty Description

486-2 - 1 - HANDGUN BOX THAT CONTAINED
OFC. MCMAHON'S DUTY PISTOL
TRANSPORTED TO THE SAN MATEO LAB

486-3 - 1 - CARTRIDGE AND CARTRIDGE
CASINGS FROM MCMAHONS DUTY PISTOL
SENT FROM SAN MATEO WITH PISTOL
ASSOC. WITH ITEM # 2053-25.

G136-1-1- ONE CD CONTAINING TWO
DIGITAL PHOTOGRAPHS OF LATENT
IMPRESSIONS FROM FLASHLIGHT ITEM
1821174

G136-1 - 1 - ONE COPY OF A FINGERPRINT
RECORD AND PALM PRINT RECORD BEARING
THE NAME RONELL DIANGELO FOSTER

2053-41-1-2053-41-2 SWABS FROM
FLASHLIGHT (ITEM 1821174)

Value

Val Recavered | Val Damaged

VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT CONTROL DOCUMENT




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT Page 1

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
NARRATIVE - Original Report, Initial Response

On 021318 at approx. 2000 hrs. I received a call from Detective Sgt. Rodriguez who told me that Officer
McMahon had been involved in an officer involved shooting in the 400 block of Carolina Street.

I arrived on scene and was advised by Detective Greenberg that V-Officer McMahon had been
sequestered at the PD. Detective Greenberg briefed me on the public safety statement Sgt. Darden had
obtained from Ofc. McMahon and that the suspect had been identified as S-Ronnell Foster. See
Detective Greenberg's supplemental report for further information as well as a description of the scene.

While at the scene, I observed that the window and front door to - Carolina Street - faced the
scene and appeared to have a good view of the area. There was a closed screen door in the doorway,
however the front door was open. The apartment lights were on and I could periodically see movement
through the window and front door.

[ and ] Carolina Street are separated by a waist high wall. DAI Rister and I walked back out to
Carolina and around the wall to attempt contact occupants at || Jflil. As I approached the door, I
could see a male subject, female subject, and at least one child through the open front door. Iknocked
on the door and announced "police department." The male subject came to the door. I asked the subject
if he saw what happened and he stated, "no, sir." He then said, "all I heard is a lot of shooting." When
asked how much shooting he heard he said, "I heard enough shooting to be scared." When I asked if
anyone in the house saw anything, he said "nope." I observed that the female subject in the living room
was shaking her head no. I asked the subject for his name and he said, "Nope. Not really, you can call
me " When pressed, the subject eventually stated that his name was with a DOB of] -
and that he didn't have a phone. It was clear that the subject was not being truthful regarding his
identity and that he did not want to talk to me. I asked the subject if he did not wish to talk to me and he
stated, "not really but I'm telling you what I heard and what I saw."
Later during the interview wit

h , I learned that the occupants of _ y
and the father of her children, (unknown last.) I later conducted a local RIMS check for

I 2ud located a traffic stop on in which a were
contacted and run through CLETS. I pulled up photo via Cal-Photo and confirmed this was the
subject I was speaking to at ] Carolina St It should be noted that I also conducted a public
records search on- Carolina St apt. l and was the first listed person associated with the
residence. My contact with- was recorded on my PDR. I later uploaded a copy to evidence.com
for preservation, 680-2. It should be noted that I also reviewed || iflohoto via Cal-Photo and it
appeared to be the same female subject I observed in the apartment.

I returned to the station where after attending a briefing, Det. Caitham, DA Investigator Wilcox, and I
conducted an interview of || il See Det. Caitham's supplemental report for details.

Det. Caitham, DA Investigator Wilcox, and I then conducted the interview of Officer McMahon. Refer
to my supplemental report for details.

Cpl. Scott and I then drove and walked the route as described by Officer McMahon from the Capitol
Street steps to- Carolina Street. On Sonoma Blvd just north of Lozier Alley, we located a white
Chevy van parked facing north on the east curb ||| jJJEBE. This is the area Officer McMahon

680

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:

ROSE, KEVIN 02/14/2018 563 RODRIGUEZ, FABIO 02/21/2018




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT Page 2
111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
NARRATIVE - Original Report, Initial Response
described S-Foster briefly stopping on his bicycle where he partially concealed his body behind a van.
Cpl. Scott and I searched the immediate area for additional evidence with negative results. I took
photographs of the area and van which I later uploaded to evidence.com.
We unable to locate any additional evidence along S-Foster's path other evidence that had already been
marked on Carolina Street.
Investigation 1s on-going.
Rose 680
Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
680 ROSE, KEVIN 02/14/2018 563 RODRIGUEZ, FABIO 02/21/2018




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT Page 1

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
SUPPLEMENT 1

On 13 FEB 18, at about 1940 hours, I was working as Vallejo Police unit 3A4 with Officer D.
McLaughlin # 664. We were both wearing a full police uniform and I was driving fully marked patrol
vehicle # 148. We responded to the area of Florida Street and Marin Street in order to assist Officer
McMahon # 702 with a subject who was fleeing from him.

While en route to the area, Officer D. McLaughlin and I were concerned for Officer McMahon because
we did not know his exact location and he was not responding to dispatch. As we drove closer to Florida
Street and Marin Street, Officer McMahon said that shots were fired at 415 Carolina Street. Officer
McMahon sounded out of breath and upset.

We drove into Kissell Alley which is located to the South of 415 Carolina Street. Officers Bahou # 662
and Blain # 642 were in front of us in their patrol vehicle. We exited our vehicle and entered the yard of
415 Carolina Street.

Once in the yard, I assisted Officers with detaining the suspect in handcuffs. The suspect was placed in
handcuffs without incident. After the suspect was safely detained in handcuffs, we provided medical aid
by applying chest seals to him. Vallejo Fire Department personnel arrived on scene soon after.

After Vallejo Fire Department personnel arrived on scene, I put crime scene tape up around the scene.
After putting crime scene tape up, Officer D. McLaughlin and I were tasked by Sgt. Darden # 529 with
driving a witness(_(Wl)) back to the Vallejo Police Department. We drove W1 back to the

Vallejo Police Department without incident.

My Taser body camera was activated during this incident. This recording was labeled with the case
number and downloaded to the server as evidence item 663-1.

Refer to the main report for further details.

Ofc. R. McLaughlin # 663

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:

MCLAUGHLIN, RYAN 02/13/2018 563 RODRIGUEZ, FABIO 02/16/2018




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
SUPPLEMENT 2

Page 1

On 13Febl18 at approx 1940 hrs, I was working with Ofc R. McLaughlin (Badge # 663) as Vallejo PD
patrol unit 3A4. We were wearing full police uniform and were operating fully marked patrol vehicle #
148. We responded to the area of Florida St and Marin St in order to assist 3P1 (Ofc McMahon Badge #
702) who had a subject fleeing from him.

While responding to cover Ofc McMahon, we both noted that he was not contacting dispatch with any
updates. Iknow from my training and experience that bicycle/foot pursuits are inherently dangerous.
Due to the above listed information, the seriousness of this call significantly elevated in my mind.

As we drove closer toward the last known location of Ofc McMahon, he alerted dispatch that he had
shots fired at 415 Carolina St. Ofc R. McLaughlin pulled our patrol vehicle into Kissell Alley just south
of 415 Carolina St.

As we exited our patrol vehicle, we observed Ofc Bahou (Badge # 662) and Ofc Blain (Badge # 642)
exiting their patrol vehicle directly in front of us. We all made our way to Ofc McMahon. Ofc
McMahon appeared visibly upset and appeared to be out of breath.

The suspect was safely detained and placed into handcuffs. Once the scene was safe other VPD Officers
and I provided medical aid to the suspect. The Vallejo Fire Department responded a short time later a

took over providing medical aid to the suspect.

Ofc R. McLaughlin and I were tasked with taking a witness _ W1) back to The Vallejo
Police Department so that he could be interviewed.

I activated my Taser Cam during this incident (See Evidence Item # 664-1 for further information).

Refer to main report and supplemental reports for further details.

Ofc D. McLaughlin (664)

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:

MCLAUGHLIN, DAVID 02/13/2018 563 RODRIGUEZ, FABIO 02/16/2018




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT Page 1

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
SUPPLEMENT 3

On 02/13/18 at approx 2020hrs, I was assigned to the VPD Crime Reduction Team and responded to the
area of 415 Carolina St tasked with crime scene security. After the scene was secured, I conducted an
neighborhood canvass of the 400 block Carolina St.

On 02/13/18 at approx 2343hrs, I knocked on the following doors:

[l Carolina St - No Answer

[l Carolina St - No Answer

- Carolina St - No Answer

[l Carolina St - spoke with a subject whom identified himself as ||| I who said he lived at
the residence. [Jffsaid he did not hear anything as he got home from practice about 20 minutes
prior to me knocking on the door. He provided a phone number ||| -

[l Carolina St - Under Construction.

These contacts were recorded on my Taser Axon body camera and placed into evidence.

DET. WYLIE #570

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
570 WYLIE, KYLE 02/14/2018 560 BAUTISTA, JEROME 02/14/2018




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
SUPPLEMENT 4

Page 1

On 02/14/2018 at approximately 0330 hours, dispatch advised me that ||| i was outside the
Vallejo Police Department lobby seeking information about- (S) Ronnell Foster.

I notified VPD Investigations Section Commander, Lieutenant Iacono, via phone. After speaking with
the coroner's office, he requested I speak to _ and give her the information that was in the press
release. He also requested that I refer her to the Solano County Coroner for any additional details

regarding - death.

Sgt. Ramrakha and I met With_ (and two other females) in the VPD lobby. She identified
herself via California Driver License as the- of (S) Ronnell Foster. I provided her the basic
information regarding the case that was provided to me in the press release. I gave her a business card
with the Vallejo Police case number on it, and the number to the Coroner's Office.

This contact was recorded on my Axon body camera. Sgt. Ramrakha recorded the contact on his Axon
device as well.

Refer to original report for disposition.

K. Tribble #588

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
588 TRIBBLE, KENT 02/14/2018 563 RODRIGUEZ, FABIO 02/16/2018




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT Page 1

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
SUPPLEMENT 5 - Response/ Ofc. Bahou and Ofc. Blain interview

On 021318 at approx. 2000 hrs. I received a call at home from Detective Sergeant Rodriguez. He told
me there had been an officer involved shooting in the 400 block of Carolina St. and Ofc. McMahon was
the actor. Sgt. Rodriguez asked me to respond to the scene to assist in the investigation. He told me the
Solano County OIF protocol had been invoked.

I arrived at to 415 Carolina St. at approx. 2040 hrs. I walked through the scene and noticed the car that
was assigned to Ofc. McMahon was facing west on Carolina St. just west of Marin St. Isaw a bicycle
that the suspect, later identified as (S)-Foster, had been riding. I walked west almost the entire block to
415 Carolina St. where the incident happened. I spoke with Sgt. Darden who briefed me on the incident.

Sgt. Darden told me the suspect was identified as (S)-Ronnell Diangelo Foster. Sgt. Darden told me
Ofc. McMahon advised over the radio he was attempting to stop a man on a bike near Marin St./
Carolina St., and the man failed to yield and was riding away. At the corner of Marin St./ Carolina St.
Foster got off of the bike and began running with Ofc. McMahaon chasing him. There was a long radio
silence and Sgt. Darden was asking for an update. Ofc. McMahon's next radio transmission was "Shots
fired." When he arrived, Sgt. Darden asked Ofc. McMahon public safety questions and brought him to
the station to be sequestered by Ofc. D. Jones. He placed Ofc. McMahon's body camera on the docking
station to download the video.

I walked through the scene at 415 Carolina St. 415 was in black letters facing the street on the north
west corner of the building. There is a door to the residence to the left of the address numbers. Along
the right (west) side of the house was a narrow walkway leading to apartments in the back of the
address. I walked south along the path and came across taser wires lying on the ground. I continued
down the path and found a cell phone further south along the path.

At the bottom of the pathway was a bank of mailboxes for the apartments. The area was illuminated by
one light bulb. I did not notice any other path lighting and no porch lights of the nearby apartments were
on. Isaw a sign saying the are was recorded by video, however, I didn't locate any cameras.

At the bottom of the stairway I found (S)-Foster covered with a yellow blanket. His head was to the
south and his feet were to the north. I was unable to notice any gunshots on Foster. He was handcuffed
and laying partially on his left side. Some items had been removed from his pockets while being tended
to by officers. Inoticed a glass pipe with bulb at one and burn marks which I recognized from my
training and experience as a pipe used to smoke methamphetamine. I saw several evidence placards
marking shell casings.

I collected body cameras from Sgt. Darden, Ofc. Blain, Ofc. Bahou, Ofc. R. McLaughlin, and Ofc. D.
McLaughlin. Ireturned to the station and placed them on the dock to download the videos. I watched
Ofc. McMahon's body camera video and noticed the following:

There was no sound for the first 30 seconds. Ofc. McMahon activated the camera immediately after
firing his weapon. The video played the last 30 seconds before he activated the camera and there 1s no
audio. It begins with Foster on the ground and Ofc. McMahon using his taser in drive stun mode as he
applies it to Foster. Theres a struggle and 1t appears Foster grabs the flashlight from Ofc. McMahon

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
618 GREENBERG, ROB 02/14/2018 563 RODRIGUEZ, FABIO 02/16/2018




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

Page 2

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
SUPPLEMENT 5 - Response/ Ofc. Bahou and Ofc. Blain interview

before the shots are fired.

Ofc. McMahon's flashlight was not at the scene where it showed to be in the video. Ileamed Ofc.
Bahou had picked up the flashlight to use it at the scene and was still in possession of it.

I attending a briefing along with other detectives and investigators from the district attorney's office. I
was assigned to the B Team with Det. Schillinger and Investigator Vicki Rister from the Solano County
District Attorney's Office. We were tasked with interviewing Officers Blain and Bahou and [Jjjij

The three of us interviewed Ofc. Bahou. The interview was recorded and booked into evidence. For his
exact statement, refer to DVD. Ofc. Bahou told us the following:

Ofc. Bahou stated he was working as a two man car assigned to beat 2, call sign 3A2, with Ofc. Blain.
Ofc. Bahou was driving their marked patrol car. At approx. 1940 hrs. he was at the station with Ofc.
Blain and they were just leaving. He heard Ofc. McMahon say he was attempting to stop a subject on a
bicycle for vehicle code violation and the subject was taking off. Ofc. Bahou said they responded code 3
and heard Ofc. McMahon advise of "Shots fired" over the radio. He then drove to the south Carolina St.
alley, named Kissell Alley, in the 400 block. A WMA opened a gate leading from the alley into the
courtyard. He and Officer Blain entered the courtyard area. Officers Dave and Ryan McLaughlin
arrived at the same time and the four of them went into the courtyard together.

He saw Ofc. McMahon standing to the left and a BMA laying on top of some bushes to the right. As a
group they contacted the BMA and placed him handcuffs and the other officers started life saving
measures.

I asked about the lighting in the courtyard and Ofc. Bahou said "It was dark, really dark." He said there
were no street lights on and I asked if any of the apartments had the porch light on. He believed the unit
to the east of the courtyard had theirs on, but to the awnings and other structures in the courtyard, it did
not 1lluminate the area and he again said "It was dark."

I asked about his uniform and equipment. He told me he was still wearing the uniform he was wearing
at the time of the incident. He does carry a flashlight, however, his flashlight was in the police station
charging. Iasked if he carried a second light on him. Ofc. Bahou said the only other light he carries is a
weapon light on his firearm.

I asked how he came into possession of Ofc. McMahon's flashlight. Ofc. Bahou said while officers were
rending aid to the suspect, he saw the flashlight on the ground near the feet of the other officers. He
thought one of them put it on the ground to free up their hands. He picked up the flashlight and
illuminated the area so the officers could tend to the suspect.

At some point after, he started a crime scene log and realized he needed to return the light to the owner.
He asked officers whose light it was when Ofc. Blain told him she believed it was Ofc. McMahon's. He
then kept it on the front seat of his car and he was going to place it in a bag and give it to investigations.
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I asked if he noticed officer McMahon's demeanor when he arrived and he said he looked to "Be in

shock." Tasked if he noticed anything about Ofc. McMahon's uniform and he said he didn't pay that
close attention to Ofc. McMahon as he was more worried about the suspect at that moment..

After the interview Ofc. Bahou placed Ofc. McMahon's flashlight in a paper bag and gave it to Cpl.
Botello and SPA Dailey.

Inv. Rister, Det. Schillinger and I then interviewed Ofc. Blain. The interview was recorded and booked
mnto evidence. See Inv. Rister's supplemental report for Ofc. Blain's statement.

We attempted to speak with (M) JJJil]. the Il of one of Foster's children. She had filed a
domestic violence report naming Foster as the suspect approximately two hours before his encounter
with Ofc. McMahon. See Det. Schillinger's supplemental report.

On 021418 I spoke with (M)-. He works with video and picture evidence and has equipment for
slow playback and the ability to analyze video. Iasked PA Kristin Jackson to send [JJjjjj the body
camera footage from Ofc. McMahon's Axon camera. [JJfsent an email telling me he received the
video and would contact me when he was done analyzing and possibly enhancing the video.

Investigation continues.

Det. R. Greenberg #618

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
618 GREENBERG, ROB 02/14/2018 563 RODRIGUEZ, FABIO 02/16/2018




VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT Page 1

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
SUPPLEMENT 6 - V-McMahon's statement

On Tuesday, February 13, 2018, at 2358 hours, Detective Josh CAITHAM, DA Investigator Paul
WILCOX and I conducted an interview of Officer MCMAHON #702. Also present was
B of Rains, Lucia, Stern, St. Phalle & Silver representing Officer MCMAHON.

When asked, Officer MCMAHON advised that he has been with the Vallejo Police Department since
July of 2017. He advised he has approximately seven years in law enforcement beginning with the
Sausalito Police Department where he was a detective as well as a firearms instructor. He left the
Sausalito Police Department and went to work for Central Marin Police Department as a patrol officer.

When asked about his training, Officer MCMAHON advised he had over 1,400 hours of POST certified
training, including POST certified investigations courses, firearms training for rifle, pistol, and shotgun,
and tactical training. He advised he attended a tactical lifesaver course. He advised he has been to
classes to determine if people are under the influence of drugs and alcohol and various report writing
classes.

Officer MCMAHON is currently assigned to graveyard patrol Monday through Thursday from 2130
hours to 0730 hours. However, he advised that he came 1in early for tonight’s shift for overtime,
beginning at 1630 hours. He was due to work until 0730 hours in the morning. Officer MCMAHON
advised that on Monday he worked the same shift, coming in at 1630 hours and working until 0730
hours.

When asked when he last slept, Officer MCMAHON advised that he went to sleep at approximately
0845 hours and woke up at approximately 1400 hours. Officer MCMAHON’s call sign tonight was 3
Paul 1.

When asked how he was dressed for his shift tonight, Officer MCMAHON advised he was in a full
Vallejo Police Department uniform, stating that there is a badge on his chest which has his badge
number and Vallejo Police. He advised the uniform is solid blue and he has department shoulder patches
on his shoulder. He further advised he was wearing a duty belt, which carries his patrol equipment.
When asked if he was driving a patrol vehicle, he advised he was. He told me he was driving Vallejo
Police vehicle number 160, which is a fully marked police patrol vehicle that has the Vallejo Police
emblems on it, 1s black and white in color, and has emergency lighting equipment on top.

When asked, Officer MCMAHON told me that his duty weapon is a Glock 21, which is .45 caliber. It
has a 13-round magazine with one round in the chamber for a total of 14 rounds. Officer MCMAHON
advised it 1s standard procedure to carry it fully loaded with 14 rounds. He indicated that it was his
personally owned firearm and not department issued. Officer MCMAHON advised that on this night, he
was carrying his firearm with 14 rounds. He said that he carries three spare magazines on his person and
he was using department issued ammunition. I asked Officer MCMAHON if he was carrying any
additional weapons and he advised he had a Glock 30 SF in his left pants pocket. Officer MCMAHON
further advised that he carries an X26P taser; he carries OC spray; and a baton.

I asked Officer MCMAHON if he had been afforded the opportunity to watch his body camera footage
of the incident. Officer MCMAHON advised that he was told he could review it if he chose to:
however, he has decided to proceed with the interview based on his recollection of the events and chose
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not to watch the video. When asked, Officer MCMAHON’s attorney advised that he had viewed the
body camera footage.

When asked about the incident, Officer MCMAHON told me that he had just cleared a call on Marin
Street (CAD 1802130158) and he was driving eastbound on Capitol Street and came to the intersection
of Capitol Street and Sonoma Boulevard. At this time he observed a subject riding a bicycle in and out
of the roadway in the northbound lanes (of Sonoma Blvd) from the Capitol Street stairs area. Officer
MCMAHON advised that he is aware of the high number of vehicle versus pedestrian fatalities that have
occurred recently in the city of Vallejo and he thought he would take this opportunity to educate the
public on the dangers that this person was creating for himself and the traffic on Sonoma Boulevard.

Officer MCMAHON advised that he was about to initiate a stop on the subject for not having a light on
his bicycle and moving in and out of the roadway as he was. He indicated that this subject saw him and
had a “deer in the headlights look.” Officer MCMAHON advised that that was not a normal reaction in
his experience. He indicated that in his experience when people see police officers, they either cuss at
you, wave at you, or stare at you. He said that based on the way this person was looking at him, he
believed that “something was wrong.” He advised that the subject then immediately fled northbound on
Sonoma Boulevard riding in the lanes of traffic. Officer MCMAHON activated his emergency lighting
equipment and siren and pointed his spot light at the subject. Officer MCMAHON states that the
subject then stopped his bicycle just prior to Florida Street.

Officer MCMAHON advised that when the subject stopped, he stopped on the sidewalk and bladed his
stance to conceal the right half of his body behind a van, which was parked on the street. Officer
MCMAHON stated that he thought this was odd.

Officer MCMAHON then advised that he had just read an article that sent out by another officer about
attacks on police officers and how subjects often blade their stance prior to attacks and he advised he
was cognizant of that fact. When asked, Officer MCMAHON advised that he believed it was an article
sent out by Officer MCCARTHY.

Officer MCMAHON then he began talking to the subject. He introduced himself as Officer
MCMAHON with the Vallejo Police Department and stated that his riding pattern was erratic. Officer
MCMAHON then asked him to come over and sit in front of his car stating that the subject’s
mannerisms were such that he did not want to leave the cover of his vehicle because he had a feeling
that “something’s not right.” Officer MCMAHON states that at that time, the subject immediately took
flight headed northbound on Sonoma Boulevard. Officer MCMAHON got back into his patrol vehicle,
notified Dispatch that he had a suspect that was fleeing from him on a bicycle and that they are now
passing Carolina towards Florida. Officer MCMAHON indicated that the suspect was weaving in and
out of traffic on his bicycle. He states that they turned westbound onto Florida Street at which time the
subject cut through the church parking lot on the (southwest) corner of Florida and Sonoma Blvd.

Officer MCMAHON advised that he knew that he could not get his vehicle through there from prior
experience so he drove down to Marin Street with his lights and sirens activated. He then turned
southbound on Marin Street and caught up with the subject at Marin and Carolina. Officer MCMAHON
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advised that he and the suspect turned westbound (on Carolina) at which time the suspect fell off his
bike. Officer MCMAHON exited his patrol vehicle, went around the back side of his patrol vehicle and
mitiated a foot pursuit with the suspect. Officer MCMAHON ordered the suspect to stop several times,
stating, “Hey, Police Department. Stop. You’re under arrest. Stop running.” Officer MCMAHON
advised that the suspect kept running and he saw him reaching for his waistband. Officer MCMAHON
advised he yelled at the subject “Don’t reach for your waistband. Get your hands away from your waist.”
Officer MCMAHON believed that the suspect may be armed with a firearm or some other type of
weapon, stating that he knows from his training and experience that when suspects run that they reach in
their waistband to feel their weapon and make sure it is there.

Officer MCMAHON advised that the suspect continued to disobey his orders. He stated that when he
was approximately 10 to 15 feet away from the suspect he utilized his department issued taser in an
attempt to apprehend the suspect. Officer MCMAHON states he fired the taser at which time he knew
that one probe stuck in the suspect’s back, but he does not believe the second probe made contact
because the suspect was not incapacitated, which you normally see with a successful deployment of a
taser. Officer MCMAHON advised that the suspect continued to run, at which time Officer
MCMAHON re-holstered his taser, continued to issue commands, such as, “Hey, stop running. Police.
You’re under arrest.” The suspect disobeyed and kept running while looking back at Officer
MCMAHON with his hands in his waistband. Officer MCMAHON indicated that he was still unsure if
the suspect was armed. He stated that he was trying to get traffic out on the radio, but he could not get
his radio traffic out based on other officers’ radio traffic. Officer MCMAHON advised that the suspect
then turned southbound in between houses indicating that there was a pathway between the houses that
sloped down towards the alleyway. He described the area that the pathway went to as a foyer and then
he described it as a small area with concrete, wood, and bushes. He states that as the suspect was
running, the suspect fell, at which time Officer MCMAHON was able to catch up to him.

Officer MCMAHON advised that the suspect got up, at which time he pushed him back down to keep
him on the ground, stating that the suspect then fell down two or three stairs. Officer MCMAHON
states that he got on top of him, stating “Police. Keep your hands away from your waistband.” Officer
MCMAHON advised that the suspect was trying to get up and “alligator roll” away from him. When
asked what Officer MCMAHON meant by alligator roll, he stated that the suspect was trying to quickly
turn to get up while Officer MCMAHON was next to him. Officer MCMAHON stated that he was
telling the suspect to stay on the ground and to show him his hands, but the subject was not listening to
him. Officer MCMAHON advised that, at this point, he could see the suspect’s right hand, but could
not see his left hand. Officer MCMAHON advised he, again, drew his taser believing that with the one
probe 1n his back, perhaps, he could complete the circuit by drive stunning and possibly incapacitating
the suspect.

Officer MCMAHON advised he utilized his taser and the taser was still ineffective and that the suspect
continued to try to get up and resist. Officer MCMAHON advised that the suspect was yelling
something along the lines of “What the fuck? What are you doing?” or something to that effect. Officer
MCMAHON then indicated he did not know exactly what the suspect was saying, but he knew that he
was not happy.
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Officer MCMAHON stated that with his taser not being effective, he had his flashlight in his hand and
he decided to use his flashlight as an impact weapon as he had been previously trained defensive tactics.
He stated he wanted to keep the suspect on the ground and he still had no idea if the suspect was armed
or not. Officer MCMAHON stated that he struck the subject several times with his flashlight. He stated
he could not say how many times he struck the subject, but that it was no more than five times.

Officer MCMAHON states that the strikes on the suspect were also ineffective. Officer MCMAHON
states that, at some point, the suspect was able to “turn and stand up at the same time he ripped the
flashlight from my hand.” Officer MCMAHON stated that, at that time, he recognized he was “all out
of options for the most part.” He reiterated that he tried his taser and that did not work; he had been in a
foot pursuit; he was wrestling on the ground with him; he was not obeying commands. Officer
MCMAHON stated he feared for his life. Officer MCMAHON advised that he knows from his training
and experience that if the suspect was to hit Officer MCMAHON i1n the head with his flashlight, he
could be knocked unconscious, have his weapon taken from him and be killed with his own weapon.
Officer MCMAHON further advised that he knew that simply being hit in the head with his flashlight
could lead to his death.

Officer MCMAHON stated, “Without even thinking about it, I had my firearm out.” He indicated that
as subject was coming upwards with the flashlight, he discharged his firearm, “eliminating the threat.” I
asked Officer MCMAHON how many times he discharged his firearm and he stated “I wanna say four
or five times, but I’'m not exactly sure.”

When asked what happened after that, Officer MCMAHON stated that the suspect immediately dropped
the impact weapon (the flashlight) and fell into the bushes and was motionless. Officer MCMAHON
stated that he was able, at that point, to get his location out to Dispatch via radio.

At this point, Officer MCMAHON became visibly emotional, his speech became choked up and his eyes
began to water. I asked Officer MCMAHON if he needed to take a break. He advised he did not.

I asked Officer MCMAHON what he thought would have happened if he did not fire his weapon and he
replied, “that he was gonna kill me.” Officer MCMAHON then stated his thought was “Oh shit, this guy
just took my light from me. We’re fighting and nothing I’ve used on him i1s working. He is gonna
smack me in the head. He’s gonna take my gun and shoot me or he’s gonna beat me down with my own
flashlight and there’s nobody here to help me and nobody knows where I'm at.”

I asked Officer MCMAHON to go back to the beginning of the incident when he first saw the suspect
and describe what he looked like. Officer MCMAHON advised that the suspect was a black male adult,
approximately mid-30s. He was wearing a dark colored hooded sweatshirt, light jeans and he was on
either a white or yellow bike. I asked Officer MCMAHON if he recognized the suspect and he advised
that he did not. I asked Officer MCMAHON if, at any point during the incident, he recognized the
suspect. Officer MCMAHON stated that he did not know who he was, he just wanted him to stop and
talk to him about the safety violations.

I asked Officer MCMAHON to talk to me about when the suspect stopped on Sonoma Boulevard.
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Officer MCMAHON advised that when the suspect stopped, he concealed the right side of his body
behind a van that was parked on the east side of the road facing north, which Officer MCMAHON
believed was odd.

When asked, Officer MCMAHON indicated that the suspect was still on the bike, but he had both feet
down. He could not see the suspect’s right hand because it was concealed by the van. He could see a
portion of the left side of the suspect’s body.

When asked what happened when Officer MCMAHON tried to talk to the suspect, Officer MCMAHON
stated that the suspect bladed his stance, which was an indication to him that something was not right.
He did not want to come over to where Officer MCMAHON was at and stated that he refused to listen to
his orders to come out in front of his vehicle. Officer MCMAHON stated that he said, “Hey look, I just
wanna talk to you about some of his (your) bike riding actions.” Officer MCMAHON advised that the
suspect was looking around, which he recognized to be pre-flight indicators and then he did take off.
Officer MCMAHON states he then got back into his vehicle. The vehicle lights were already activated
and chased the suspect northbound on Sonoma. He states he updated Dispatch to what was going on.

Officer MCMAHON advised the suspect turned west onto Florida Street, made a sharp southbound turn
through the church parking lot.

I reminded Officer MCMAHON that he mentioned that at some point the suspect fell off his bike. I
asked Officer MCMAHON to talk to me about that. Officer MCMAHON stated that when the suspect
was going through the parking lot, Officer MCMAHON drove to Marin Street in an effort to cut the
suspect off. Officer MCMAHON advised he knew the area and he believed he knew where the suspect
was going to go. Officer MCMAHON stated that when the suspect fell off his bike, it was on the north
part of the sidewalk (on Carolina). Officer MCMAHON states he got out of his vehicle and went around
the back of the vehicle and, at that point, the suspect had gotten up. I asked Officer MCMAHON if the
suspect was riding on the sidewalk and he stated no, he had been riding in the middle of the street and
then fell advising the suspect fell in front of a parked car.

I asked Officer MCMAHON where he was when the suspect fell off his bike. Officer MCMAHON
indicated that he was behind the suspect. Officer MCMAHON stated that there was a parked car parked
on the side of the street and the suspect fell in front of the car while Officer MCMAHON was towards
the rear end of the car. Officer MCMAHON advised he got out of his vehicle and ran around to the
sidewalk because he believed the suspect was going to run to the sidewalk but the suspect ran
southbound.

I asked Officer MCMAHON if he was still in his vehicle when the suspect fell off his bike and he stated
he was. I asked how far away Officer MCMAHON’s vehicle was from the suspect at this time and he
stated approximately 15 or 20 yards. I asked Officer MCMAHON if, at any point, did his vehicle come
mnto contact with the suspect on his bicycle. Officer MCMAHON advised that it did not. I asked Officer
MCMAHON which direction the suspect began running. Officer MCMAHON indicated that the suspect
was running westbound, but was running across the street in a south to southwest direction. Officer
MCMAHON states that the suspect continued west on Carolina with his hands in his waistband. Officer
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MCMAHON was ordering him to stop and announcing himself as the police and telling him to get his
hands out of his waistband. Officer MCMAHON states that he deployed his taser, which was
meffective. I asked Officer MCMAHON if he remembers where he was when he deployed his taser and
he stated he did not. Officer MCMAHON then stated that he knows it was before he and the suspect
went down the walkway of 415 Carolina. Officer MCMAHON states he remembers getting tangled up
in the taser wires before the walkway. Officer MCMAHON advised that he saw one of the probes hit
the suspect in his back, but he was not sure where the other probe went, but he knew the taser was
meffective based just on the sound the taser was making and the fact that the suspect was not
incapacitated from it.

I asked Officer MCMAHON to talk to me about his training in regards to the taser. Officer
MCMAHON advised that at the three law enforcement agencies he has worked for, he has utilized the
taser. He has had several taser deployments on suspects, indicating that some have been successful and
some have not been successful. In each department where he carried a Taser, he was provided
department training on it. Officer MCMAHON indicated that he recognized the taser was ineffective
based on the loud “clacking sound” that it was making and the fact that the suspect was not immediately
incapacitated.

When asked what happened next, Officer MCMAHON indicated that the suspect was still grabbing for
his waistband and looking back at him. Officer MCMAHON began thinking about what the suspect was
trying to do. Officer MCMAHON thought the suspect might be reaching for a weapon. Officer
MCMAHON indicated that because he could not get out on the radio what was happening as he was
going down this pathway, his thought process was to take the suspect into custody and then let Dispatch
know where he was.

I asked Officer MCMAHON if the suspect was talking to him at this point and he advised he was not. I
asked Officer MCMAHON if the suspect said anything to him up to this point and Officer MCMAHON
advised nothing that he could remember. Iasked Officer MCMAHON if the suspect said anything to
him back at the van. Officer MCMAHON advised that the suspect said something, he could not
remember what it was, but he thought it might have been something along the lines of, “Man, stop
messing with me.” I asked Officer MCMAHON what happened as they were running southbound down
the walkway of the house and Officer MCMAHON advised that they came to an area which he referred
to as a foyer. He described it as a small enclosed area with bushes. I asked Officer MCMAHON if it
was fair to call it a courtyard and he advised that it could be a courtyard, stating it was tight quarters.
There were stairs and bushes. He stated, at the most, it was “ten-by-ten.” He stated that once they got to
the stairs, the suspect fell just prior to the stairs and then got back up again, at which point, Officer
MCMAHON catches up to him.

Officer MCMAHON states he made contact with the suspect and pushed him back down. I asked
Officer MCMAHON if he had a taser in his hand at this point and he advised he had re-holstered it. I
asked Officer MCMAHON if he used both hands to push the suspect to the ground and he states that he
does not remember. I asked Officer MCMAHON if he had anything in his hands and he stated he
believed he had his flashlight in his right hand. I asked Officer MCMAHON if he said anything to the
suspect as or after he pushed him to the ground. He stated that he said, “Police, you’re under arrest.
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Stop resisting. Put your hands on top of your head. Don’t put your hands by your waist.” Officer
MCMAHON says it was at this time the suspect said something like, “What the fuck?” advising he
knew the suspect was “not happy.”

Officer MCMAHON states that the suspect tried to get up again and pushed him back down to the
ground. Officer MCMAHON advised that he, again, deployed his taser to make the connection with the
first probe, but it was ineffective. I asked Officer MCMAHON how many times he tried to drive stun
down the suspect and he stated he thinks it was at least twice. I asked Officer MCMAHON what the
suspect was doing as he drive stunned him. Officer MCMAHON stated, “Nothing, absolutely nothing.
He wasn’t screaming. He was still trying to get up.” I asked Officer MCMAHON if the suspect had any
kind of visible reaction and Officer MCMAHON stated that he did not have any kind of reaction. I
asked Officer MCMAHON what happened after he drive stunned the suspect. Officer MCMAHON
stated the suspect was doing a type of roll in an effort to get up. Officer MCMAHON states he was over
the suspect at this point and trying to push him down. He had the taser on the suspect and the taser was
not working.

I asked Officer MCMAHON to describe how the suspect was positioned. Officer MCMAHON stated
that at first, the suspect was 1n a sitting down, but trying to get up. Officer MCMAHON then pushed the
subject back down as he was trying to drive stun him. When asked the position of the suspect when
Officer MCMAHON was drive stunning him, he stated that he was on his side and his stomach, stating
that he was laying down on his stomach, but was rolling up. Officer MCMAHON demonstrated by
rolling his right arm and shoulder backwards and then stated that the right part of the suspect’s body was
coming up towards him.

Officer MCMAHON advised that, at this point, he believes he was down on one knee, trying to hold the
suspect down and drive stun him with the taser. Officer MCMAHON states he was issuing commands
at this time. When asked, Officer MCMAHON advised his taser was in his left hand and he believes he
had his flashlight in his right hand.

I asked Officer MCMAHON to tell me what he did when he realized that drive stunning the suspect was
not working. Officer MCMAHON stated that he had his flashlight in his hand, he holstered his taser and
he utilized his flashlight as an improvised impact weapon in which he had been trained to do. Officer
MCMAHON states that he attempted to strike the suspect in his clavicle and also his arm and those
strikes were ineffective. Officer MCMAHON believes he hit the suspect less than five times.

Officer MCMAHON advised that by the time he realized the impact strikes were ineffective, the suspect
had already ripped the flashlight from his hands and stood up. I asked Officer MCMAHON how the
suspect was positioned when he was striking him with the flashlight. Officer MCMAHON advised that
the suspect was on his side, trying to get up. Officer MCMAHON stated that the suspect’s left arm was
on the ground and he was rolling towards him and starting to get up.

Officer MCMAHON states that the suspect was able to get his feet underneath him and get up at the
same time he grabbed his flashlight and ripped it from him. When asked, Officer MCMAHON stated
that the suspect used his right hand to rip the flashlight from him. When asked what Officer
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MCMAHON was doing with his flashlight when the suspect took it from him, Officer MCMAHON
stated that he was going in for another strike. I asked Officer MCMAHON if the suspect caught the
flashlight and Officer MCMAHON stated yes. I confirmed with Officer MCMAHON that at the same
time, the suspect was able to get to his feet and Officer MCMAHON stated “yes.”

I asked Officer MCMAHON what he did next. Officer MCMAHON stated, “I had an oh shit moment. I
was like oh my god, this dude just took my flashlight. He’s gonna use it against me. He’s gonna hit me
in the head, something’s gonna happen.” Officer MCMAHON stated he was scared and then Then, “I
really thought he was gonna use my flashlight against me.”

Officer MCMAHON stated that, based on his training and experience he is supposed to up the level of
force if someone uses an impact weapon against him. He was not going to match the force of the
suspect by using his baton. Officer MCMAHON stated that he then utilized his firearm “instinctively.” I
asked Officer MCMAHON how far away he was from the suspect when he fired and he replied, “point
blank” and then stated, “no more than an arm’s distance.”

I asked Officer MCMAHON to tell me about the lighting in the courtyard. He stated that there was a
small light above the mailboxes, later indicating that the mailboxes were behind him. He stated that
other than that, it was dark and that he did not see any other lighting whatsoever. I asked Officer
MCMAHON if he had a good view of the suspect when his flashlight was not shining on him and he
replied no. Iasked Officer MCMAHON if the light was on on his taser and he replied he did not
remember. I confirmed with Officer MCMAHON that the light was behind him and Officer
MCMAHON advised that it was. Officer MCMAHON stated that it was dark and that he could not see
the suspect very well.

I reminded Officer MCMAHON that he previously told me that he could not see the suspect’s left hand.
I asked Officer MCMAHON if he was giving the suspect commands about his hands. Officer
MCMAHON stated that he kept telling the suspect to put his hands on top of his head and not to put
them towards his waistband.

Officer MCMAHON was asked to describe what the suspect looked like when he was coming up with
his flashlight. Officer MCMAHON stated that it looked like the suspect had taken a “boxer type stance
with a good base” and that the suspect was using a back swing with the flashlight as he was getting up.
Officer MCMAHON stated that the suspect was now not trying to run away from him and he interpreted
the suspects actions as an indication that the suspect was thinking ‘we are gonna fight, I'm gonna kill
you.’

Officer MCMAHON was reminded that there was a point earlier in the interview when he got a little bit
emotional, when he described being in the back yard by himself and no one knowing where he was at
while fighting the suspect. He was asked to describe the emotions he was feeling.

Officer MCMAHON stated that he was thinking he can’t believe this guy took his flashlight and used it
as an impact weapon against him, and then he stated, “I’m not going to die back here. I’'m not going to
be a victim. Everything I’ve done has been ineffective.” Officer MCMAHON advised didn’t know if
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the suspect was under the influence of drugs and still did not know know if he’s armed or not. Nor did
he know why the suspect ran. Officer MCMAHON then stated, “I just know that he’s not giving up and
he’s not going to stop.” When I asked if he was in fear for his life, he stated, “Yes.”

Officer MCMAHON was asked if at that point the Suspect had any avenues of escape. Officer
MCMAHON stated that he believed the Suspect could have fled southbound to the alley, behind the
courtyard. But the way the Suspect was turning on Officer MCMAHON and coming up with the
flashlight, Officer MCMAHON believed that he didn’t believe the Suspect was going to try and run.
He believed the Suspect was about to use his impact weapon against him.

Officer MCMAHON stated the knows from his training and experience the flashlight can be used to
break his hands, knock his weapon away from him, with one hit to head he could be rendered
unconscious, at which point, the suspect could obtain his firearm. Officer MCMAHON then stated, “It
was a terrible situation to be put in.”

Officer MCMAHON was asked what the suspect was doing with his hands immediately after he took
the flashlight from him. Officer MCMAHON demonstrated with his right hand and stated that his arm
was coming up in a swinging motion. Iasked Officer MCMAHON if he believed the suspect was trying
to hit him. Officer MCMAHON nodded in the affirmative and stated “yes.” Officer MCMAHON was
asked to describe the suspect’s stance. He stated that his feet were shoulder-width apart, something
similar to “a boxer” type stance. He believed that it was a stance that a trained fighter would take.
Officer MCMAHON advised that he typically doesn’t see normal public taking a fighting stance when
mnteracting with police officers, which led him to believe that the Suspect had some kind of training.
Officer MCMAHON stated that he thought it was a possibility the suspect may be under the influence of
a narcotic, based on the fact that his Taser and strikes from his flashlight were ineffective.

I asked Officer MCMAHON if, at any point, he got a good look at the suspect’s face. Officer
MCMAHON advised that he had a good look at the suspect’s face while he was stopped behind the van
on Sonoma Boulevard. Iasked Officer MCMAHON if, to his knowledge, if he remembers any contact
with the suspect. He stated that, to his knowledge, he has had no contact with the suspect.

I reminded Officer MCMAHON that he told me he observed the suspect riding his bike on Sonoma
Boulevard. Officer MCMAHON advised that was correct. Iasked Officer MCMAHON if the suspect
had any lights on his bicycle. He advised it did not. I asked Officer MCMAHON if there was traffic on
Sonoma Boulevard at that time and he advised that there was.

Officer MCMAHON stated that he was creating a safety condition, which was his original reason for the
stop, based on the traffic fatalities we’ve had in the last several months. Officer MCMAHON indicated
that he would have said something along the lines, “Hey, this is what’s been going on (in regards to
pedestrian fatalities). You need to make yourself safe, so that you don’t get run over, or someone could
have swerved and caused an accident, hurting innocent bystanders.”

Officer MCMAHON was asked if his siren was on when the suspect was fleeing from him on his
bicycle. Officer MCMAHON advised that a siren was intermittent. Officer MCMAHON went on to
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elaborate that he was turning his siren on and off, and he was verbally telling the suspect to stop, and
was using the PA system to advise the suspect to stop.

Officer MCMAHON was asked if, at any time, he identified himself as police and told the suspect to
stop advised that he that he did.

Officer MCMAHON was asked to elaborate on what happened when the suspect took his flashlight.
Officer MCMAHON stated that, at this point, the suspect was getting up off the ground and that his
strikes were ineffective. Officer MCMAHON stated that at some point he was coming in for another
strike with his flashlight, demonstrating with his right hand. Officer MCMAHON stated the suspect
ripped the flashlight from his hand. When asked what Officer MCMAHON meant by “ripped his
flashlight from hand,” he stated that he was holding it and that it was a violent motion.

Officer MCMAHON asked if he had ever been in the back yard before and advised he had not. He was
asked if knew who lived there and advised he did not. Officer MCMAHON was asked if at any time the
suspect grabbed his belt or his uniform, he replied he didn’t remember.

At this point, we took an approximate 13-minute break.

Upon returning from the break, Officer MCMAHON was asked about what point he activated his body
camera. Officer MCMAHON advised that he activated his body camera immediately after the shooting.
I asked Officer MCMAHON if there was any reason why he didn’t activate it earlier. He replied that
there was a lot of stuff going on. He said that while chasing the suspect, he was using his left hand to
deploy the Taser. He then replied there was a lot going on. Officer MCMAHON was asked 1f both his
hands were occupied and he advised that he had his flashlight in his right hand and his Taser in his left
hand.

Officer MCMAHON was asked if he remembered at what point the Suspect was handcuffed. He
advised that he was not present at that time. He stated that he directed officers to his location. And
upon officers arriving to his location, they immediately began rendering aid to the suspect. Sergeant
Darden then arrived on scene and asked him several public safety questions. After that, he was
sequestered at the police department with Officer D. JONES.

Officer MCMAHON was asked to talk about what the suspect was doing at the time he grabbed his
flashlight. Officer MCMAHON advised the suspect was actively trying to get up off the ground.
Officer MCMAHON advised that he didn’t remember if the suspect was pushing on him or punching
him. He just remembers that he was hitting the suspect and it wasn’t working.

I asked Officer MCMAHON to demonstrate the stance that the suspect took upon grabbing his
flashlight. Officer MCMAHON stood and took a bladed stance with his right foot in front of his left
foot, shoulder-width apart. He demonstrated his right arm as coming from a low position around his
waist and rising up above the shoulder.

I advised Officer MCMAHON that he keeps describing the suspect as bladed and asked Officer

680
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MCMAHON what that meant to him. Officer MCMAHON advised that when he sees that, he believes
it to be someone that has had training or experience in fighting. He stated that it leads to more power
when you swing or throw punches.

Officer MCMAHON stated that the Suspect was in a back-handed motion with the flashlight coming
towards him. When I asked what he did at that point, Officer MCMAHON stated that he, “instinctively
drew my firearm and neutralized the threat. I started shooting.”

Officer MCMAHON was asked to confirm that he was driving Vehicle 160. He advised he was. He
was asked if that vehicle had a dash camera. He advised it did not.

Officer MCMAHON was again asked if he knew how many rounds he fired and he advised that he
thought it was four or five, but after the shooting, he did a “round count” and it was six or seven. When
asked what he meant by “round count,” Officer MCMAHON advised that he removed his magazine and
counted the ammunition he had remaining.

When asked what direction he was firing his weapon in, Officer MCMAHON advised he was firing in
easterly direction.

Officer MCMAHON was asked if his weapon and Taser had been collected. He advised that it had been
collected as evidence by Corporal Botello.

The interview was concluded at 0050 hours.

Officer MCMAHON's interview was recorded on video. I placed the video on a disc and booked it into
evidence as 680-1. Refer to video for additional details.

NFL

Rose 680
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On 2/13/18 I was working as a Detective for the Vallejo Police Department's crime reduction team. I
responded to 415 Carolina St. to assist in an officer involved shooting investigation.

I arrived on scene and assisted with scene security. I was tasked with a neighborhood canvas in attempt
to locate any witnesses.

I contacted the resident at- Carolina St. which 1s a church. I spoke to the church representative,

_. - did not hear or see anything regarding the incident.

I contacted the resident of JfjCarolina St.. ||| S Bl 2dvised he was inside of his residence
when he heard approximately 8-10 gun shots which he thought came from in front of his residence.
I did not see anything other than VPD units arriving on scene after the gun shots.

I contacted the residence of ] Carolina St. |||} N 2 I O 1y [l Leard

approximately 5-6 gun shots, then VPD units arriving on scene.

I noticed there were surveillance cameras on the north side of 730 Sacramento St. I knocked on the door
of the residence but got no answer.

The neighborhood canvas was captured via Axon body camera. (650-1).

At approximately 0046 hours I took over the crime scene log from Ofc. Bahou. I maintained the crime
scene log until the crime scene was finished being processed at approximately 0320 hours.

Det. Tonn gave me an additional crime scene log which he received from Ofc. Hendrix. The crime scene

logs were booked into evidence. (650-2).

This was the extent of my investigation in this incident.

-Det. Wagoner #650
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On 02/13/2018 at approx. 1940 hours I was working as a Detective for the Vallejo P.D. Crime
Reduction Team. Iresponded to 415 Carolina St., in regards to an officer involved shooting.

After the scene was secured by patrol officers, Det. Tonn and I were later tasked with doing a canvas of
the area for an witnesses to the incident.

Det. Tonn and I check the following addresses for witnesses.
- Carolina St. - - There was no answer at the door
[l Carolina St. ] - There was no answer at the door
- Carolina St. . - There was no answer at the door

- Carolina St. - - The 1‘esident_ answered the door and stated he was home during the
incident but did no hear or see anything.

- Carolina St. (Main house, no number on door) - The 1‘esident_ answered and stated
that she was home during the incident. [JJjjjjffsaid that she heard some gun shots outside of her
residence. - said she looked outside of her window, where the gunshots came from and saw a
police officer and subject laying in the bushes. [Jfj went back in her residence.

- Carolina . - There was no answer at the door

[l Carolina[JJl] - There was no answer at the door

- Carolina . - There was no answer at the door

Det. Tonn had his body camera on during the area check and later uploaded it in to evidence.com under
this case number.

I request this information be forwarded to Vallejo P.D. Investigations unit for their information.

Nothing further
Barreto #670
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On 01/13/2018, I was assigned to uniformed patrol and Ofc. Karimi's Field Training Officer. At
approximately 2206 hours, Ofc. Karimi and I responded to the area of Marin Street and Carolina Street
to assist with crime scene security.

Upon arrival at the scene Ofc. Karimi took over the crime scene log. Ofc. Karimi and I remained on
scene until approximately 0159 hours, when we were relieved.

While on scene I activated my AXON camera several times to record the actions of various on-lookers.
These videos were later uploaded into evidence.

I had no further involvement with this case.

Ofc. B. Murphy #667
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SUPPLEMENT 11 - AUTOPSY OF FOSTER 18-1786

Report Date : February 15, 2018
Agency : Vallejo Police Department
Agency Case #: 18-1786

Victim: 702

Suspect: Foster, Ronell

Crime : 69 PC

CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATION SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT
OVERVIEW
On January 17, 2018, I was notified by the Solano County Coroner’s Office that they would be
performing an autopsy of RONELL FOSTER on today’s date. I responded to the Solano County

Coroner’s Office to collect evidence and photograph the autopsy.

I arrived at the Solano County Coroner’s Office at approximately 0800 hours. Present during
the autopsy was Dr. Josselson and Assistant Brynne Caputo.

I arrived back at the Vallejo Police Department Evidence Section to book the evidence after
the autopsy.

PURPOSE OF EXAMINATION

To attend, photograph and collect evidence from the autopsy of FOSTER.
EVENT DESCRIPTION

On February 13, 2018, a Vallejo Police Officer was involved in an altercation while making
contact with RONELL FOSTER. FOSTER was shot and succumbed to his injuries.

FOSTER was transported to the Solano County Coroner’s Office.

On February 15, 2018, I responded to the Solano County Coroner’s Office to observe the
autopsy of FOSTER.

EXAMINATION RESULTS

FOSTER was located in a white sealed body bag. The blue seal #136649 was cut at 0824
hours.

FOSTER is a black male adult with short curly black hair, black facial hair and a few tattoos.

Date:
02/16/2018
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I cut FOSTER’s left hand and right hand fingernails, putting the clippers used in the same bag
as the nail clippings.

Foster was wearing a black sweatshirt, black T-shirt, white tank top, light blue jeans with a
black belt and a badge holder, red plaid boxers, one black sock, one white sock and blue
shoes.

Located in Foster’s right pant coin pocket were two plastic bindles. These bindles were
located by Assistant Caputo and provided to me. One bindle had a white powder in it and the
second had clear crystals. Two pieces of Mamba candy were located in Foster's left front
pocket. Clear colored stone earrings were removed from Foster’s left and right ears and I
collected them. A gold colored necklace with medallion was removed by Dr. Josselson and I
collected it.

A vial of blood was given to me by Assistant Caputo.

Six bullets were located and I collected the bullets. The bullets were located in Foster’s right
sweatshirt sleeve, right shirt, on the table near Foster’s left neck, right chest cavity, left chest
cavity and right temple. Dr. Josselson located the bullets and I photographed and collected
them.

See coroner’s report for additional information pertaining to where Foster’s injuries were,
including the cause of death.

PROPERTY BOOKED

2053-28-SIX BULLETS FROM FOSTER-RIGHT SWEATSHIRT SLEEVE, RIGHT SHIRT, TABLE
NEAR FOSTER NECK, RIGHT CHEST CAVITY, LEFT CHEST WALL AND RIGHT TEMPLE
2053-29-CLEAR COLORED EARRINGS (ONE MISSING THE BACK)

2053-30-TWO PLASTIC BINDLES. ONE WITH WHITE POWDER AND ONE WITH WHITE
CRYSTALS

2053-31-FOSTER'S BLOOD

2053-32-GOLD COLORED NECKLACE WITH MEDALLION

2053-33-TWO PIECES OF MAMBA FROM FOSTERS LEFT FRONT POCKET

2053-34-FOSTER'S LEFT AND RIGHT HAND FINGERNAIL CLIPPINGS

2053-35-FOSTER'S RED PLAID BOXERS

2053-36-FOSTERS BLACK SWEATSHIRT

2053-37-FOSTER'S BLACK T-SHIRT

2053-38-FOSTER'S WHITE TANK TOP

2053-39-PHOTOGRAPHS OF SCENE

2053-40-PHOTOGRAPHS OF AUTOPSY
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On 2/13/18, I was contacted by Det. Sgt. Rodriguez regarding an Officer Involved Shooting in which the
County Protocol was activated. I responded the scene located at 415 Carolina St. I entered the crime
scene, was given a brief update by Officer Blain who was maintaining the crime scene log. I then
returned to the Vallejo Police Department where I attended a briefing and was assigned to Team B
consisting of Det. Greenberg and DAI Rister.

Team B was assigned to interview Officer Bahou, Blain and interview the Suspect's child's mother

| called- and briefly spoke with her on the phone. She agreed to come the Vallejo
Police Department to be interviewed. |JJij never came. I called her numerous times and she refused
to answer my calls.

I was present in the interview room when Bahou and Blain were interviewed. Refer to supplements for
further.

On 02/14/18, Det. Greenberg and I spoke with Vallejo Fireﬁghter- (-) at Station 21.

1s assigned to Engine 21. In regards to the incident in question, he responded the 415 Carolina Street
regarding a possible shooting where there were possibly multiple casualties. When he arrived on scene,
he noticed the Suspect was laying on his side and handcuffed behind his back. He noticed the Suspect
had what appeared to be two gunshot wounds to his front chest area and one to the back. He noticed
there were chest seals placed over the wounds. He attached a cardiac monitor to the Suspect and
confirmed the Suspect had no heart rhythm. - pronounced the Suspect deceased at 1951 hours.

When i} was tending to the Suspect, he noticed there were items of evidentiary value around the

Suspect. He advised he did not disturb or touch any evidence. After completing his duties, he exited the
crime scene.

Present with FF - was Captain - Engineer-, and Chief -

The mnterview with- was audio recorded.
This 1s merely a summary, refer to recording for further.

Det. Schillinger #638
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On February 13, 2018, I was in training with Officer Murphy on uniformed patrol. At
approximately 2200 hours, we responded to the intersection of Carolina St. and Marin St. to assist with
scene security due to an OIS that occurred earlier that day.

Upon arrival, I met with Ofc. Hendrix (709) who was responsible for completing the crime scene
log. I relieved Ofc. Hendrix of his duty at approximately 2200 hours and took responsibility of
completing the crime scene log along with scene security on Marin St.

At approximately 0220 hours, Ofc. Hendrix relieved me of the crime scene log.

This incident was recorded on my Axon Body Camera.
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sUPPLEMENT 14 - | I

18-1786

WITNESS:

DOB:

Vallejo, CA 94590

On 02/13, at approximately 2000 hours, I was called by Detective Sergeant RODRIGUEZ in
regards to an officer involved shooting which had occurred in the 400 block of Carolina.
Detective RODRIGUEZ advised he had no further info at that time and advised that this was
going to be a call out.

I responded to the area of the 400 block of Carolina. I made contact with detectives already
on scene. I was advised that the suspect was identified as Ronnell FOSTER. I learned that
the scene was located behind 415 Carolina.

As I made my way into the rear of 415 Carolina, which is a multiunit apartment complex, I
observed taser wiring on the ground along a wooden pathway deck that proceeded south. As
I continued, I observed the wooden deck come to an end and several steps down into a
concrete alcove area. I observed multiple evidence placards in the area. I observed the
deceased lying on the ground with a yellow tarp over him.

Carolina which is located next to 415 Carolina to the west. I spoke with a

and her mother, , at this location. I learned that both
females were cooperative and advised them to stay in their house and some officers would
come speak with them regarding anything they saw or heard. Both females agreed and
waited. Both females were later contacted by Vallejo Police. See additional reports for their
statements.

I went to

I learned that a witness by the name of had been transported to the Vallejo
Police Department. I was advised by officers on scene that |Jij was a witness and lived at

Il Carolina Street, |GG | <turned to the Vallejo Police

Department.

On 02/13/18, at approximately 2350 hours, Detective ROSE, District Attorney Investigator Paul
WILCOX, and I conducted an interview with [JJli]. The interview was video recorded. The
following is a summary of the interview. See recording for full details.
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It should be noted that [l entrance to his residence faces west into a covered canvas
patio from which you can view the cement alcove through some bushes.

I =dvised that he is retired. He stated that he had been a LA Police Commissioner’s
Office Locksmith. He advised that during his time there of ten years, he would accompany the
Los Angeles Police Department and various other agencies, such as DEA and the Sheriff’s
Office, on warrant services and evictions. He said his primary role as a locksmith was to open
the doors and then once the scene was secured open any safes or things that require
locksmith abilities. He said he is especially trained for this job. He advised that he did carry a
firearm during this time and wore a bullet proof vest. He described one incident in which he
had been shot at through the front door while trying to lock pick it. He advised that he went
through a training program for this that took three months and required him to qualify with his
firearm twice a year. He advised he has also worked other jobs in the past, which included
working at Genetech at one time.

He advised he has lived at- Carolina Street, ., for approximately 17 years. He advised
that for approximately the last ten years, the complex has been having problems with the
neighbors west of them which is also an apartment complex. He advised that he manages the
complex he lives in for a person named ] who he later identified as ||| | j j - He
advised that the problems with the tenants across the yard have been going on for a long
time, so he is constantly on the lookout for any problems. He stated he often has his front
door opened because he is a smoker and that his front door was opened on this date.

advised that on this date, he heard the officer coming down the walkway yelling “stop,
stop!” He stated that he saw a person come down the steps and that the officer was pursuing
him. He advised this was a pursuit situation and described them as being in pursuit mode and
later stated that the way the officer was hollering stop, you could tell something was
happening. |l described the walkway as a wooden deck with wood planks. He stated
that it came from Carolina Street and down into the backyard where it then goes down some
steps onto some concrete in an alcove.

'II

He advised that he saw the suspect come down the steps into the concrete alcove and that he
was fighting with the officer and resisting the officer. ] later indicated the he had direct
view of the incident. [JJJilj stated that he heard the officer giving commands to turn around,
give me your hands, get down, stop.

I - cvised that the suspect was yelling at the officer, although he did not know what the
suspect was saying. He described the suspect’s tone of voice as angry and aggressive. He
advised that the officer tried to handcuff the suspect, but that the suspect pulled away from
the officer, struggling with him.
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I acvised the officer then deployed his taser. He could tell it was a taser by the way it
sounded and described the sound as a “ka-ka-ka-ka”. [ stated the officer told the suspect
“Get Down! Get Down!” - advised that the suspect then got up and lunged at the
officer. He stated that the officer then fired at the suspect approximately five times.
advised the officer gave the suspect every opportunity to comply. - stated he believed
the officer was justified in what he did because the suspect was coming at him.

I acvised he knew the police officer was a police officer because he observed that the
officer was wearing an officer’s uniform, had a flashlight and a taser. further advised
that he had never seen this officer before and did not know him. I asked about the
suspect, and he stated that he had never seen the suspect before and did not know him.
I = vised that he did not see what happened to the flashlight or the taser after the
shots were fired. He advised that he recognized the sound of a taser and that he use to sell
tasers.

stated that the officer tried to do everything he could to restrain the suspect. He
indicated that the officer did not have any other choice but to shoot the suspect. He stated
the suspect was willing to do anything to get away. indicated that if the officer had not
shot the suspect the officer would have been in trouble. indicated that the officer
could have been injured and believes the officer’s life was in danger. ] stated that you
could tell the suspect was not going to back off. | stated that the officer took every
opportunity to restrain the suspect and had no choice but to take the action that he took.

- advised that although some of the complex has signs stating there is video surveillance,
there are in fact no cameras on the scene. [JJJl] described the people that live in the
apartments west of his apartment and provided their names and contact information of the
ones he had.

I =dvised that the incident began during the nighttime and that it was dark. He stated
that when the incident first occurred, when he first heard the officer yelling stop, he could tell
there was some kind of pursuit happening. He heard the officer say get down, get down, but
stated the suspect would not get down and went at the officer.

After the incident occurred, [JJJl] asked the officer if he was okay. [JJJij then advised the
officer that he could open the gate to the alley. stated that he believed the officer was
talking on his radio, trying to direct people to him. advised the officer that if you open
the gate people would be able to come through it, and the officer told him to open the gate,
which he did. He stated that the officer told him additional officers were on their way and to

wait which i} did.

571
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End of statement.

The video was later booked into Evidence.

CAITHAM 571

18-1786
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On 02-16-18 at about 1630 hrs I went to ] Sacramento St for purpose of checking the residence for
video cameras as it was noted during the neighborhood canvas that the residence had cameras however
no one answered the door.

I observed that the residence had four video cameras. Three of the cameras pointed toward Sacramento
St. One camera on the northwest corner of the residence pointed toward the 400 block of Carolina.

I contacted resident _ at the house and he allowed me to download the camera which faced
Carolina St. T was able to down load one hour of video. It should be noted that the date was correct but
the time stamp was forward by 2 hours and 12 minutes. The incident began at 1940 hrs which would
have been 2152 hours on this system. I downloaded video from 02-13-18 from 2100 to 2159 hours.

I reviewed the video and did not observe anything of evidentiary value. I did observe police cars
arriving to assist however I did not observe any of the foot pursuit/incident on the video. The video is of

poor quality.
The video was burned to a CD and booked into evidence.

Caitham 571
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SUPPLEMENT 16 - Enhanced video evidence
On 02-21-2018, I received a UPS envelope from (W)-Michael G. Schott which contained a flash drive.
The flash drive had four attachments, two videos and two PDF attachments.
I looked at the videos and one version was a slow motion of the video from Ofc. McMahon's #702 body
camera and the second version was the full speed version from which he made the still photos and slow
motion version. The fourth attachment was the time line of events Schott observed in the video.
All items were booked into evidence.
Det. R. Greenberg #618
Approved by Lt H. Robinson #331
04-06-2018
Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
618 GREENBERG, ROB 02/21/2018 331 ROBINSON, HERMAN 04/06/2018




111 AMADOR ST

VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

VALLEJO, CA 94590
SUPPLEMENT 17 - SCENE

Page 1

18-1786

Report Date: February 13, 2018
Agency: Vallejo Police Department
Agency Case #: 18-1786
Victims: Officer McMahon
Suspects: RONNELL FOSTER
Location: 415 Carolina
Crime: 69 PC
TOC: 1940 hours
CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATION SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT
OVERVIEW

On February 13, 2018 at 2000 hours, I was contacted by Corporal Richard Botello #486
advising of an officer involved shooting that just occurred.

I responded to the scene at 415 Carolina Street. I accessed the scene originally through
Kissell Alley due to the large presence of citizens attempting to access the scene. I
photographed the scene as it was when I arrived. Corporal Botello responded to the scene
and advised of a briefing at the Vallejo Police Department. Prior to processing the scene, I
responded to the Vallejo Police Department to attend the briefing. At the briefing, District
Attorney Investigator Aaron Dillon was assigned to assist Corporal Botello and I with Evidence
Processing. Prior to responding to the scene again, I photographed Officer McMahon #702
and collected his duty weapon and Taser. Corporal Botello, DAI Dillon, and I responded to the
scene and completed processing, to include Deputy Coroner Smith taking possession of
FOSTER.

After processing the scene, I responded to the Vallejo Police Department Evidence Section to
book the property in this case.

PURPOSE OF EXAMINATION

To process the scene to include photographing the scene, marking property to collect,
photograph the property to collect and collect the items of evidentiary value at the scene.

To photograph the officer involved in the above incident and collect his duty weapon.

To photograph, GSR and swab (S) FOSTER and document when Deputy Coroner Smith took
possession of FOSTER.

To download photographs into Evidence.com and book property collected at the scene and the
Vallejo Police Department.

Date:
02/22/2018

Date:
02/21/2018 331

Approved By:
ROBINSON, HERMAN

Prepared By:
2053 DAILEY, STEPHANIE
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EVENT DESCRIPTION

On February 13, 2018 at approximately 1940 hours, Officer McMahon was involved in a foot
pursuit which ended in the officer discharging his duty weapon. Officer McMahon was
removed from the scene and transported to the Vallejo Police Department.

I first responded to the scene at 415 Carolina Street in the city of Vallejo. I entered the scene
through Kissell Alley. The scene was in an open area behind 415 Carolina Street (southern
direction). Upon entering the back of the scene, 415 was marked on the fence in the alley. I
walked north down a walkway with a fence to the west and a building to the east. At the end
of the walkway was a shed with the letter A in the top right corner of the doorway. Stairs to
the east of the shed were photographed. A covered patio was east of the shed along with a
walkway in between the shed and the covered patio.

North east of the shed was FOSTER. He was covered with a yellow blanket. Short “patrol”
placards were placed around FOSTER. I later replaced these placards and my report will refer
to the placards that I placed at the scene. Seven patrol placards were located on the north
east end of the shed.

Wooden stairs north of the shed were noted with chipped red paint. These stairs led to a
cement walkway which led to the west side of 415 Carolina Street and ultimately led out to the
street. Patrol placards were also noted in this walkway.

I photographed the scene and was then asked to respond to the Vallejo Police Department for
a briefing and to photograph Officer McMahon. After the briefing, Corporal Botello, DAI Dillion
and I met with Officer R. McMahon. He was wearing a Vallejo Police Department uniform with
a long sleeve shirt and a fully equipped duty belt. I photographed McMahon in uniform and
then requested that he remove his duty belt. He placed his duty belt on a table in which his
duty weapon was removed and photographed. After photographing McMahon'’s duty weapon,
his weapon was rendered safe by Corporal Botello and packaged for evidence. Officer
McMahon'’s duty weapon is a Glock 21 45 caliber handgun, serial number [JJJl]. Five live
rounds were located in McMahon’s magazine. One live round was located in the chamber of
the gun. Officer McMahon had three fully loaded magazines on his duty belt.

Officer McMahon's Taser was photographed with number | l]l noted on the interior of
the Taser. I collected Officer McMahon’s Taser for evidence. The items remaining on
McMahon's duty belt and the belt was returned to Officer McMahon.

Corporal Botello, DAI Dillion, and I then respond back to the scene. I began to place my

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
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yellow, tented placards near items of evidentiary value. I photographed the property with
both my placards and patrols placards then I removed the patrol placards. My report will refer
to the tented placards that I placed at the scene.

Placard one marked a Taser wire located on the steps on the west side of 415 Carolina Street.
Placard 2 marked a HTC cell phone in the walkway south of 415 Carolina Street. Placards 3
through 8 marked expended .45 Auto casings. Placard 9 marked a Taser dart. Placard 10 is
an expended bullet. Placard 11 is Taser cartridge and placard 12 is an expended casing. The
items marked with these placards were collected by me prior to processing the scene on
Carolina Street.

Prior to the arrival of the Solano County Coroner’s Office, I photographed FOSTER. He was
lying on his right side. His blue jeans with a belt were down close to his knees. He was
wearing red plaid boxers and I noted a black sweatshirt. A bloody tank top was noted under
FOSTER’s black sweatshirt. FOSTER was wearing blue Nike shoes. Some contents were
removed from his person prior to my arrival to include a bottle of Neosporin, a Mamba
wrapper, a package of green Now & Later, five yellow Mamba’s, a container of Carmex, an
orange Now and Later package, a small bag of suspected marijuana, a small container with a
yellow substance and a glass pipe with a bulbous bottom which appeared to be burned. I
collected these items.

Foster was handcuffed prior to my arrival. Upon the arrival of Deputy

Coroner Smith, the handcuffs were removed and I collected them in order to return them to
Officer Blain #642. With Deputy Coroner Smith’s permission, I processed FOSTER for GSR on
his left and right hand. I swabbed FOSTER's left and right hands. I also obtained a buccal
swab from FOSTER and swabbed his face.

FOSTER was placed in a white sealed body bag which contained blue seal #136649 and
Solano County Coroner’s case number 2018-0159. The bag was sealed at 0218 hours on
February 14, 2018.

Corporal Botello indicated there was additional evidence on Carolina Street. After processing
the scene to the back of 415 Carolina Street, I responded to Carolina Street where I
photographed and collected evidence on the street.

We responded to 448 Carolina Street, Vallejo Bible Church. The church is located on the
corner of Marin and Carolina Streets. (V) McMahon's vehicle was parked in the middle of the
street facing west on Carolina Street. McMahon’s vehicle number was 160. The vehicle was
secured prior to my arrival. A set of ear phones was located near the corner of Carolina and
Marin Streets. The ear phones were marked with Placard 21. A key was located on the north
sidewalk of Carolina Street. The key was marked with Placard 20. Placard 19 marked a blue

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
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lighter. Placard 18 marked a black cell phone. Placard 17 marked a white bicycle with head
phones.

North east from the street, a black and red baseball cap was located. The baseball cap was
marked with placard 16 (in front of vehicle Lic# ) in the gutter in front of 421
Carolina Street. In the middle of the street of the 400 block of Carolina Street was a green
door to a Taser. This item was marked with placard 15. Placard 14 was located west of
placard 15 and it marked a green Taser door. Placard 13 was north of placard 14 and it
marked a Taser dart. These items were photographed in place then collected.

Once all items were collected, we responded back to the Vallejo Police Department Evidence
Section to book all items.

PROPERTY COLLECTED

2053-1 BURGENDY HEAD PHONES (P 17)

2053-2 BLK AND RED PIRATES BB CAP (P16) IN THE GUTTER IFO 421 CAROLINA

2053-3 BLUE HEADPHONES (P 21) ON THE SIDEWALK OF CAROLINA STREET

2053-4 SUSPECTED HASH OIL FROM FOSTER'S POCKET REMOVED PRIOR TO MY ARRIVAL
2053-5 SUSPECTED MARIJUANA FROM FOSTER'S POCKET REMOVED PRIOR TO MY ARRIVAL
2053-6 TASER CARTRIDGE (P 11)

2053-7 METH PIPE FROM FOSTER'S POCKET REMOVED PRIOR TO MY ARRIVAL

2053-8 LIGHTER (P 19) NEAR THE BICYCLE ON CAROLINA STREET

2053-9 TASER FROM MCMAHON (X26P)

2053-10 TASER GREEN DOOR HALF (P 14) IN THE MIDDLE OF CAROLINA STREET

2053-11 TASER DART W/ WIRE (P 13) IN THE MIDDLE OF CAROLINA STREET

2053-12 TASER WIRE IN WALKWAY ON WEST SIDE OF 415 CAROLINA (P1)

2053-13 CELL PHONE WHITE COVER (P2) IN WALKWAY 415 CAROLINA

2053-14 TASER DART (P9) NEAR FOSTER

2053-15 EXPENDED BULLET (P10) NEXT TO FOSTER

2053-16 NEOSPORIN, MAMBA (5), NOW + LATER, MAMBA WRAPPER, CARMEX REMOVED
FROM FOSTER'S POCKETS BEFORE MY ARRIVAL

2053-17-US CURRENCY .25 REMOVED FROM FOSTER'S POCKET BEFORE MY ARRIVAL
2053-18 TASER GREEN DOOR HALF (P15) IN THE MIDDLE OF CAROLINA STREET

2053-19 BLACK CELL PHONE ZTE UNDER BIKE ON CAROLINA STREET

2053-20 GSR KIT

2053-21 SWABS OF FOSTER - BLANK, BUCCAL, FACE LEFT AND RIGHT HANDS

2053-22 (7) FC .45 AUTO CASINGS

2053-23 (S) FOSTER'S BLACK BICYCLE ON CAROLINA STREET

2053-24-KEY ON THE NORTH SIDEWALK OF CAROLINA STREET

2053-25 OFFICER MCMAHON FIREARM. GLOCK. MODEL 21, .45CAL , S/N# |- (1)

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
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2053-39-PHOTOGRAPHS OF SCENE

Stephanie Dailey #2053
Senior Police Assistant
CSI

Vallejo Police Department
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On 02-14-2018 at 1532 hours, Sgt. Fabio Rodriguez #563 sent an email which contained a link to a news
report that KTVU produced in response to this case. Sgt. Rodriguez requested that this video be
memorialized.

On 02-16-2018 at 0730 hours, I opened the link contained in the email which took me to the video titled
"Vallejo Police Fatally Shoot Man During Violent Physical Struggle" on KTVU's website. Using the
program Snagit 13, I recorded a copy of this news cast while it played. I then saved this recording to my
computer where I burnt a copy to a disc and booked it into evidence under 2126-1.

M. Rutherford #2126
Police Assistant

3k 3k 2 3 3¢ 2 sk sk sk sk sk sk ok o sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk i sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk sk skoskok ko kokoskokokokokok ROk Xk

ADDITIONAL PROPERTY

Item #58, Status: Evidence
#58: 1 Disc. KTVU NEWS REPORT

Approved by Lt H. Robinson #331
02-22-2018
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Report Date: February 13, 2018
Agency: Vallejo Police Department
Agency Case #: 18-1786
Crime: 69 PC/0OIS
Location: 415 Carolina St.
TOC: 1951
Victim: McMahon, Ryan
CRIME SCENE INVESTIGATION - SUPPLEMENTAL REPORT
OVERVIEW

On Tuesday, February 13, 2018 at 1950 hours, I was contacted by Detective Lieutenant Joe
Iacono #553 advising of an officer involved shooting that just occurred. Lt. Iacono requested
that I call out Senior Police Assistant Stephanie Dailey #2053 and that we respond to the
scene.

I responded to the scene at 415 Carolina Street. I accessed the scene through Kissell Alley
and met with Senior P.A. Dailey who responded to the scene and was taking overall
photographs. I advised her of a briefing at the Vallejo Police Department, and when she
finished we responded to the Police Department for the briefing.

At the briefing, District Attorney Investigator Aaron Dillon was assigned to assist Senior P.A.
Dailey and me with Evidence Processing.

Prior to responding to the scene again, Senior P.A. Dailey, DAI Dillon and I met with Officer
McMahon #702 to photograph him, collected his duty weapon and his Taser.

Corporal Botello, DAI Dillon, and I responded to the scene and completed processing, to
include Solano County Deputy Sheriff/ Coroner Smith taking possession of FOSTER.

After processing the scene, I responded to the Vallejo Police Department Evidence Section to
book the property in this case.

EVENT DESCRIPTION

On February 13, 2018 at approximately 1940 hours, Officer McMahon was involved in a foot
pursuit which led to an Officer involved shooting.

Prepared By: Date:
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I first responded to the scene at 415 Carolina Street in the city of Vallejo. I entered the scene
through Kissell Alley. The scene was in an open patio area behind 415 Carolina Street
(southern direction). Upon entering the scene from the alley, 415 was marked on the fence in
the alley. I walked north down a walkway with a fence to the west and a building to the east.
At the end of the walkway was a shed with the letter A in the top right corner of the doorway.
Stairs to upper unit were to the east of the shed. A covered patio was east of the shed along
with a walkway in between the shed and the covered patio.

North east of the shed was FOSTER. He was covered with a yellow blanket. Short “patrol”
placards were placed around FOSTER indicating items of evidence marked by Patrol. These
placards were later replaced by our own evidence placards and reflected in P.A. Dailey’s
report.

Wooden stairs north of the shed were noted with chipped red paint. These stairs led to a
cement walkway which led to the west side of 415 Carolina Street and ultimately led out to the
street. Patrol placards were also noted in this walkway.

Senior P.A. Dailey photographed the scene and then I asked her to respond to the Vallejo
Police Department for a briefing and to photograph Officer McMahon. After the briefing,
Senior P.A. Dailey, DAI Dillion and I met with Officer R. McMahon. He was wearing a Vallejo
Police Department uniform with a long sleeve shirt and a fully equipped duty belt. Officer
McMahon was photographed in full uniform, and then requested that he remove his duty belt.
He placed his duty belt on a table in which his duty weapon was removed and photographed.
After photographing Officer McMahon'’s duty weapon, his weapon was rendered safe by myself
and packaged for evidence. Officer McMahon’s duty weapon is a Glock 21 .45 caliber
handgun, serial number |l Five live rounds were located in Officer McMahon's
magazine. One live round was located in the chamber of the gun. Officer McMahon had three
fully loaded magazines on his duty belt.

Officer McMahon's Taser (X-26P) was photographed with number ||l noted on the
interior of the Taser. Officer McMahon’s Taser did not have a live cartridge in the Taser upon
removing it from its holster. I collected Officer McMahon’s Taser for evidence. The items
remaining on Officer McMahon's duty belt and the belt was returned to Officer McMahon.

Senior P.A. Dailey, DAI Dillion, and I then respond back to the scene. Senior P.A. Dailey then
began to place my yellow, tented placards near items of evidentiary value and photographed
the property with both my placards and patrols placards. She then removed the patrol placards
and her report will refer to the tented placards that she placed at the scene.

Placard one marked a Taser wire located on the steps on the west side of 415 Carolina Street.

Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
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Placard 2 marked a HTC cell phone in the walkway south of 415 Carolina Street. Placards 3
through 8 marked expended .45 Auto casings. Placard 9 marked a Taser dart. Placard 10 is
an expended bullet. Placard 11 is Taser cartridge and placard 12 is an expended casing.

Prior to the arrival of the Solano County Coroner’s Office, Senior P.A. Dailey photographed
FOSTER. He was lying on his right side. His blue jeans with a belt were down close to his
knees. He was wearing red plaid boxers and I noted a black sweatshirt. A bloody tank top
was noted under FOSTER’s black sweatshirt. FOSTER was wearing blue Nike shoes. Some
contents were removed from his person prior to my arrival to include a bottle of Neosporin, a
Mamba wrapper, a package of green Now & Later, five yellow Mamba’s, a container of
Carmex, an orange Now and Later package, a small bag of suspected marijuana, a small
container with a yellow substance and a glass pipe with a bulbous bottom which appeared to
be burned. Senior P.A. Dailey collected these items.

Foster was handcuffed prior to our arrival. Upon the arrival of Deputy

Coroner Smith, the handcuffs were removed and they were collected in order to return them
to Officer Blain #642. With Deputy Coroner Smith’s permission, P.A. Dailey processed FOSTER
for GSR on his left and right hand. P.A. Dailey also swabbed FOSTER's left and right hands,
and obtained a buccal swab from FOSTER and swabbed his face.

FOSTER was placed in a white sealed body bag which contained blue seal #136649 and
Solano County Coroner’s case number 2018-0159. The bag was sealed at 0218 hours on
February 14, 2018.

I advised Senior P.A. Dailey that there was additional evidence on Carolina Street. After
processing the scene to the back of 415 Carolina Street, P.A. Dailey responded to Carolina
Street where she photographed and collected evidence on the street.

P.A. Dailey and DAI Dillon responded to 448 Carolina Street, Vallejo Bible Church. The church
is located on the corner of Marin and Carolina Streets. (V) Officer McMahon's vehicle was
parked in the middle of the street facing west on Carolina Street. Officer McMahon's vehicle
number was 160. The vehicle was secured prior to my arrival. A set of ear phones was
located near the corner of Carolina and Marin Streets. The ear phones were marked with
Placard 21. A key was located on the north sidewalk of Carolina Street. The key was marked
with Placard 20. Placard 19 marked a blue lighter. Placard 18 marked a black cell phone.
Placard 17 marked a white bicycle with head phones.

North east from the street, a black and red baseball cap was located. The baseball cap was
marked with placard 16 (in front of vehicle Lic# ) in the gutter in front of 421
Carolina Street. In the middle of the street of the 400 block of Carolina Street was a green
door to a Taser. This item was marked with placard 15. Placard 14 was located west of

486
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placard 15 and it marked a green Taser door. Placard 13 was north of placard 14 and it
marked a Taser dart. These items were photographed in place then collected.

Once all items were collected, we responded back to the Vallejo Police Department Evidence
Section to book all items.

PROPERTY COLLECTED

2053-1 BURGENDY HEAD PHONES (P 17)

2053-2 BLK AND RED PIRATES BB CAP (P16) IN THE GUTTER IFO 421 CAROLINA

2053-3 BLUE HEADPHONES (P 21) ON THE SIDEWALK OF CAROLINA STREET

2053-4 SUSPECTED HASH OIL FROM FOSTER’S POCKET REMOVED PRIOR TO MY ARRIVAL
2053-5 SUSPECTED MARIJUANA FROM FOSTER’S POCKET REMOVED PRIOR TO MY ARRIVAL
2053-6 TASER CARTRIDGE (P 11)

2053-7 METH PIPE FROM FOSTER'S POCKET REMOVED PRIOR TO MY ARRIVAL

2053-8 LIGHTER (P 19) NEAR THE BICYCLE ON CAROLINA STREET

2053-9 TASER FROM MCMAHON (X26P)

2053-10 TASER GREEN DOOR HALF (P 14) IN THE MIDDLE OF CAROLINA STREET
2053-11 TASER DART W/ WIRE (P 13) IN THE MIDDLE OF CAROLINA STREET

2053-12 TASER WIRE IN WALKWAY ON WEST SIDE OF 415 CAROLINA (P1)

2053-13 CELL PHONE WHITE COVER (P2) IN WALKWAY 415 CAROLINA

2053-14 TASER DART (P9) NEAR FOSTER

2053-15 EXPENDED BULLET (P10) NEXT TO FOSTER

2053-16 NEOSPORIN, MAMBA (5), NOW + LATER, MAMBA WRAPPER, CARMEX REMOVED
FROM FOSTER'S POCKETS BEFORE MY ARRIVAL

2053-17-US CURRENCY .25 REMOVED FROM FOSTER'S POCKET BEFORE MY ARRIVAL
2053-18 TASER GREEN DOOR HALF (P15) IN THE MIDDLE OF CAROLINA STREET

2053-19 BLACK CELL PHONE ZTE UNDER BIKE ON CAROLINA STREET

2053-20 GSR KIT

2053-21 SWABS OF FOSTER - BLANK, BUCCAL, FACE LEFT AND RIGHT HANDS

2053-22 (7) FC .45 AUTO CASINGS

2053-23 (S) FOSTER'S BLACK BICYCLE ON CAROLINA STREET

2053-24-KEY ON THE NORTH SIDEWALK OF CAROLINA STREET

2053-25 OFFICER MCMAHON FIREARM. GLOCK. MODEL 21, .45 CAL ,

s/N# . (1) MAGAZINE AND (5) CARTRIDGES (1) ROUND FROM CHAMBER
2053-39-PHOTOGRAPHS OF SCENE

486-1 Sketch of patio scene at 415 Carolina Street.

Corporal R.A. Botello #486
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SUPPLEMENT 20 - SMC Lab Report - Firearm
On 5-22-2018, I received San Mateo County Crime lab report M18-00819-1. The report concerns
Officer McMahon's duty firearm, a Glock 21, .45 caliber, s/n-. The firearm and magazine which
had been in use were sent to the lab for function testing.
The report indicates that the firearm was found to be functional with the submitted magazine. See the
attached report for further details.
NFL
Rose 630
Prepared By: Date: Approved By: Date:
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I reviewed Ofc. McMahon's Axon Video footage. The video is 4 minutes in length. Per the time stamp,
recording starts at 1940:48 hours. The following are my observations from the video. Times referenced
in this supplement will be in relation to the beginning of the video, 00:00 (0 mintues : 0 seconds). All
times referenced are approximate.

As the video starts, the suspect appear to be laying on his left side on the ground. Light from Ofc.
McMabhon's taser is seen in the left side of the frame.

00:03 Ofc. McMahon removes the cartridge from his taser. Ofc. McMahon 1s holding the taser in his
left hand. Ofc. McMahon's flashlight is in his right hand. The head of the flashlight is oriented down.

00:07 S- Foster appears to turn to get up, his torso coming off the ground. Ofc. McMahon drive stuns S-
Foster in the upper right side of S-Fosters chest. S-Foster appears to grab or swat the taser away.

00:08 to 00:16 Axon is unstable. Flashes of light from taser flashlight, status lights, laser as well as
Ofc. McMahon's flashlight can be seen.

00:16 Video stabilizes. Ofc. McMahon attempts to activate his Axon with his right hand as indicated
by what appears to be multiple button pushing attempts with his right hand just below camera view.

00:17 S-Foster is laying on his left side.

00:18 - 00:19 Ofc. McMahon, using his right hand, appears to strike S-Foster twice with base of
flashlight.

00:22 - 00:24 S-Foster has rolled to his back facing S-McMahon. S-Foster looks at Ofc. McMahon,
shakes his head smiling. S-Foster sits up and lunges towards Ofc. McMahon's right. S-Foster appears
to be looking at Ofc. McMahon's flashlight.

00:26 Camera view shifts to Ofc. McMahon's right. Head of flashlight is now on left side of the frame.
Flashlight beam and sweeps the side of the building to Ofc. McMahon's right from the bottom of the
building to the roof.

00:27 Flashlight falls to the ground directly in front of S-Foster's feet.

00:28 The bottom of S-Foster's shoes are visible. Feet appear to be facing towards the left (north) of
frame indicating he is laying on right side.

00:30 -00:31 As Ofc. McMahon activates his Axon with his left hand, his firearm is clearly visible in his
right hand as it is briefly illuminated by his flashlight rolling on the ground.

Audio begins.

00:31 - 00:39 Ofc. McMahon is breathing heavy. States "Vallejo 3 Paul 1 shots fired 415 Carolina
Street."
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SUPPLEMENT 21 - V's Axon Video Review

00:43 - 00:48 Witness can be heard saying similar to "Wow that was nasty. You okay?"

00:51 - 00:56 Ofc. McMahon still breathing heavy states, "I got one suspect down, start EMS." He then
immediately asks witness, "What's your address, sir?" Witness replies, "415 Carolina."

01:00 - 01:03 Ofc. McMahon states, "Afrim, I'm okay."

01:14 - 01:17 Witness asks, "Is he dead?" Ofc. McMahon responds, "I don't know."

01:20 - 01:28 Ofc. McMahon states, "Hey sir, can you stay here. I'm all the way down the alley, run
down the alley." Ofc. McMahon moves towards the walkway towards Carolina Street while keeping his

weapon trained in the suspect's direction.

01:30 - 01:33 Witness states, "let me put some shoes on. I'll open up the back gate." Ofc. McMahon
replies, "Alright."

01:39 Ofc. McMahon deploys secondary flashlight in his left hand.

01:40 Ofc. McMahon illuminates suspect. S-Foster is on the ground. The top half of his body is in the
bushes. His legs are oriented to the left side of the frame (north). His torso appear to be turned farther
to the right. Ofc. McMahon's flashlight is in front of S-Foster's legs. The flashlight is pointed to the
right side of the frame (south).

01:42 Ofc. McMabhon still breathing heavy states "oh fuck."

01:45 - 01:50 Ofc. McMahon turns to his right, appears to look over a low wall that 1s directly behind
him, turns back towards suspect.

01:56 - 01:59 Ofc. McMahon again turns to his right states, "Stop right there, stop. You gotta jump the
fence right there."

02:08 Ofc. McMahon states, "10-4. I'm at 415 Carolina Street, apartment number C. It's like a foyer."
Ofc. McMahon appears to be looking around the immediate area.

02:25 - 02:27 Ofc. Blain states, "Coming back, coming back." Ofc. McMahon who is still breathing
hard states, "It's all good, he's down, he's down. He's down."

Officers enter the area from the south.
02:30 Sgt. Darden 1s heard saying, "where are you." Ofc. McMahon and Of. Blain reply, "back here."

02:34 Ofc. McMahon moves to the walkway towards Carolina Street and says, "Sarge, right here."
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SUPPLEMENT 21 - V's Axon Video Review

02:40 - 2:44 An officer can be heard asking, "does he have a gun." Ofc. McMahon replied, "no, no. I
didn't search him all the way. We were fighting."

Officers are heard securing suspect.

02:55 - 03:09 Sgt. Darden moves Ofc. McMahon away. Sgt. Darden asks Ofc. McMahon if he is okay."
Ofc. McMabhon still breathing heavy replies, "Yes." Sgt. Darden asks Ofc. McMahon how many shots
he fired and what direction. Ofc. McMahon replies, " 5 or 6 in that direction. Right there." Sgt. Darden
advises the other officers.

03:14 Sgt. Darden asks Ofc. McMahon if he started the chase from his car. Ofc. McMahon replies,
"Yeah no yeah we started on Sonoma." Sgt Darden asks, "right where your car is parked.." Ofc.

McMahon says, "that's where we got into a foot pursuit, yeah."

Sgt. Darden advises dispatch that he needs the 400 block of Carolina Street closed, directs incoming
units and confirms that medics are in route.

Ofc. McMahon turns off his camera
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On 19Jul18 at approx. 1100 hrs, I was contacted by Lt Iacono in regards to my supplemental report for
VPD case 18-1786. Lt Iacono had a question in regards to the last line in my report where I wrote “DO
NOT APPROVE”.

VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

111 AMADOR ST

Page 1

VALLEJO, CA 94590
SUPPLEMENT 22

On 13Febl18, while at the crime scene, I was told by Detective Division Sergeant Rodriguez that he

wanted to be the supervisor to approve the reports for this case as opposed to a patrol supervisor. Due to
this fact, I wrote “DO NOT APPROVE” on the bottom of the report, so that my normal Patrol Division

supervisor would not approve the report and leave it in the system (RIMS) until Sgt Rodriguez could

approve it.

Ofc D. McLaughlin (664)
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VALLEJO POLICE DEPARTMENT

111 AMADOR ST VALLEJO, CA 94590
SUPPLEMENT 23

Page 1

On 08/31/18, I reviewed this case to determine if all reports had been completed in order to submit the
case to the Solano County District Attorney’s Office. During my review, I found that I had previously
approved supplement number 2 by Ofc. D. McLaughlin. During the approval process, “Do Not
Approve” had been left at the end of the report.

In my review on 08/31/18, I saw that “Do Not Approve” was still at the end of the report and knew that
it had no substantive application to the report. Therefore, I deleted “Do Not Approve” from the end of
the report and continued on with my review of the case. No other changes were made.

Sgt. F. Rodriguez # 563
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SUPPLEMENT 24 - SMIC Lab Reports - Flashlight

I received San Mateo County Crime lab report M18-00819-2, dated 10-22-2018. The report concerns
the processing of Officer McMahon's flashlight (662-1) for latent fingerprints.

Prior to the latent print processing, sample swabs were collected from the textured surface of the
flashlight for later DNA processing. These swabs were saved as SMC item# 189237.

Latent prints were located and photographed and compared to the fingerprint record of S-Foster. The
results of the comparison were inconclusive due to the quality of the latent impressions. There were no
latent impressions suitable for searching in the AFIS database.

On 1-17-2019, I received San Mateo County Crime lab report M18-00819-3 dated, 10-31-2019. This
report concerns the DNA processing of the sample swabs (SMC 189237) collected from Officer
McMahon's flashlight prior to the latent fingerprint processing.

The report indicates that three low-level alleles were developed from which no conclusions can be
drawn. The sample did not contain enough information for entry into CODIS.

NFL
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Solano County District Attorney Date: 2/15/18
DAI # 18-0127 Investigator Vicki Rister

Supplemental Report

Subject: Officer Involved Fatal Incident
Case #s: VPD 18-01786, DAI 18-0127
Date: 02/13/18

Location: 415 Carolina Street, Vallejo
Crime: 273.5(a) PC and 148(a) PC
SUSPECT:

FOSTER, Ronell, DOB: 11/18/84 - DECEASED

Victim: Officer Ryan McMahon #702
Vallejo Police Department

Witness: Officer Jason Bahou #662
Vallejo Police Department

Witness: Officer Amanda Blain #642
Vallejo Police Department

Other: | peEH |

Summary:
On 2/13/18, while assisting Vallejo Police Department with their investigation as

part of the Solano County Officer Involved Fatal Incident Protocol Team, | was
assigned to Team B to assist VPD Detective Robert Greenberg and VPD
Detective Terry Schillinger. Our role was to interview the witness officers and
Ronell FOSTER's child’s mother || Jl] who made a domestic violence
report to police approximately 90 minutes before the fatal incident.

Narrative:

On 2/13/18, | responded to the 400 block of Carolina Street in Vallejo for an
officer involved fatal incident as part of the Solano County Officer Involved Fatal
Incident Protocol Team. Upon my arrival, | was escorted by VPD Sgt. Bobby
Knight to the rear of 415 Carolina Street.

Once | walked the scene, | responded to the Vallejo Police Department for
briefing. | was assigned to Team B to assist VPD Detective Robert Greenberg

Vicki Rister\WM Page - 1-4
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Solano County District Attorney Date: 2/15/18
DAI # 18-0127 Investigator Vicki Rister

and VPD Detective Terry Schillinger. Our roll was to interview witness officers
Jason Bahou and Amanda Blain, and to interview

Detective Schilﬁnier called JJanc IEE agreed to respond to VPD to be

interviewed. made a police report alleging domestic violence
approximately 90 minutes prior to the fatal incident. and Ronell FOSTER
share one child in common.

while waiting for [l to arrive, Detective Schillinger, Detective Greenberg
and | interviewed VPD Officer Bahou. The interview was audio and video
recorded. Detective Greenberg was the primary interviewer. Refer to Detective
Greenberg's report for details of Officer Bahou's statement.

Detective Schillinger, Detective Greenberg and | then interviewed VPD Officer
Amanda Blain. | was the primary interviewer. Officer Blain told us the following
in summary:

Officer Blain said that she was on duty in full uniform as part of a two-man patrol
unit with Officer Jason Bahou. Officer Blain said that she and Officer Bahou
were operating a fully marked black and white patrol vehicle.

Officer Blain said at approximately 2040 hours, she and Officer Bahou responded
from the police department to an officer needs assistance call in the area of
Marin Street and Florida Street. Officer Blain said that the officer (referring to
Officer Ryan McMahon) attempted to make a bicycle stop but the rider failed to
yield. Officer Blain said Officer McMahon stated that they were westbound on
Florida Street and “that was it for the moment”, meaning no more radio updates
were provided.

Officer Blain said the next thing they heard on the radio was “shots fired”. Officer
Blain said there was some confusion about Officer McMahon'’s location. Officer
Blain said originally, they were directed to the alley south of 415 Carolina Street.
Officer Blain said there was a patrol unit in front of them as they tumed
westbound into said alley. Officer Blain said she then saw an adult white male
opening the side of a fence and he directed them to Officer McMahon. Officer
Blain said Officer McMahon was located in the courtyard north of the alley and
south of 415 Carolina Street.

Officer Blain said once on scene, she saw Officer McMahon standing with his
service weapon drawn and another subject (later identified as Ronell FOSTER)
lying in the bushes. Officer Blain said the Officer McMahon might have said that
FOSTER had not been searched, but she was not sure.

Officer Blain said FOSTER was just lying in the bushes not moving. Officer Blain
said FOSTER's left hand was under his body out of their view. Officer Blain said

Vicki Rister Page-2-4
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that Officer Bahou, Officer Ryan McLaughlin and Officer David McLaughlin were
all there so she went “hands on” with FOSTER and pulled his left hand out to
handcuff it. Officer Blain said the other officers were giving FOSTER direction
not to move etcetera. Officer Blain said one of the other officers grabbed
FOSTER's right hand and she was able to handcuff it to his left hand.

Officer Blain said they pulled FOSTER from the bushes and began “life saving
measures”. Officer Blain said she checked FOSTER for weapons and found
none.

Officer Blain said that the scene was cold, dry, and clear. Officer Blain said the
lighting in the area was “not super well-lit but not pitch black”. Officer Blain said
there was lighting to the rear of where Officer McMahon had been standing,
approximately four solar powered patio lights that did not give off much light and
a light on the side of one of the apartment buildings | the area. Officer Blain said
she used a flash light to handcuff and to search FOSTER.

Officer Blain said that she did not see Officer McMahon after she turned around
from securing FOSTER. Officer Blain said Officer McMahon seemed “shaken”
when she arrived. Officer Blain said she had seen Officer McMahon earlier in the
shift, but did not notice anything different about his uniform after the incident
occurred.

END OF STATEMENT

Refer to the attached CD for any additional information not summarized in this
report.

While still waiting for- to arrive, Detective Schillinger and | reviewed the
body camera footage from her earlier domestic violence report. B stoted
she and FOSTER were together for several years (I can't recall exactly how
many, possibly 9 years) and they share one child together. stated that
there had been more than 100 incidents of domestic violence over the years.

At the time of this writing, [ never responded to the police department to
be interviewed. _

On 2/14/18, | reviewed the DA’s Office records and found four prior domestic
violence cases that had been taken by VPD and submitted to the DA’s Office:
e VPD case # 15-06513 for 273.5(a) PC received by the DA’'s Office on
7115
o Rejected by DDA Jennifer Wilson for “no ID of defendant by victim.
We have been unable to contact/locate victim”
e VPD case # 15-08324 for 243(e)(1) PC received by the DA’s Office on
7/23/15
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o Rejected by DDA Terry Ray for “no corroboration”
e VPD case # 15-08851 for 273.5(a) PC received by the DA’s Office on
8/13/15
o Rejected by DDA Jennifer Wilson for “we have no ID of the
defendant. V/W has attempted to contact through her father with no
success. All #s now disconnected. Will reconsider if another
incident with ID comes in”
e VPD case # 15-11756 for 243(e)(1) PC received by the DA’s Office on
12/23/16
o Rejected by DDA Terry Ray for “statute of limitations has run out”

| also located a case involving a 242 PC with mother and FOSTER:
e VPD case # 14-12386 for 242 PC received by the DA’s Office on 2/13/15
o Rejected by DDA Marlo Nisperos for “cannot prove BRD”

Disposition:
I recommend this supplemental report be forwarded to DAI Paul Wilcox, the lead
investigator for this incident.

Vicki Rister Page-4-4
Criminal Investigator



Solano County District Attorney May 8,2018
DAI#18-0127 Inv. Paul Wilcox

Investigative Report

Suspect Foster, Ronell DOB 11/18/1984

Witness G /2| cjo, CA. DOB N
Phone#707 N

Victim  VPD Officer Ryan McMahon #712

Team A Det. Rose, Det. Caitham and DAI Wilcox

Team B Det. Schellinger, Det. Greenberg and DAI Rister

Team C Det. Tonn, Det. Wylie, Det Wagoner, Det. Barretto and DAI Meyer

Team D Cpl Botello, PA Dailey and Supervising DAI Dillon.

Investigation: On 02/13/2018 | responded to the area of the 400 Block of

Carolina St., Vallejo in reference an officer involved shooting by an officer
from the Vallejo Police Department. | was told once | got to the scene that
there would be a briefing at the Vallejo Police Department. At

approximately 2230 hours the briefing was started and | was a member of
Team A. (Vallejo PD Detectives Rose and Det. Caitham were also Team A).

We were tasked with interviewing (V) Vallejo PD Officer Ryan McMahon and
(W) I

Paul Wilcox
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On 02/13/2018 at approximately 2316 hours Det. Caitham, Det. Rose and |
interviewed (W) - ('nterview was audio and video recorded).

See Vallejo Police Department report for information from interview.

On 02/13/2018 at approximately 2358 hours Det. Rose, Det. Caitham and |
interviewed (V) VPD Officer Ryan McMahon with his Attorney Il
I of Rains, Lucia, Stern, St. Phallie & Silver. (Interview was audio
and video recorded). See Vallejo Police Department report for information

from interview.

Nothing further, supplements may follow. See other investigators reports

for more information.

Paul Wilcox
Page 2 of 2
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SOLANO COUNTY SHERIFF’S OFFICE

Thomas A. Ferrara, Sheriff-Coroner

Coroner’s Office
520 Clay Street, Fairfield, CA 94533
Office (707) 784-7500 / Fax (707) 784-7501

AUTOPSY [ ] EXTERNAL EXAMINATION
NAME: Ronell Diangelo Foster CASE NO: 2018-0159
POSTMORTEM DATE: February 15, 2018 TIME: 0824 Hours

PLACE OF DEATH: Alleyway DATE: February 13, 2018

TIME: 1951 Hours

AGE: 33 SEX: Male RACE: Black

AUTOPSY FINDINGS:
1. Fatal gunshot wound of abdomen and right chest
Fatal gunshot wound of left chest
Fatal gunshot wound of left chest and right chest
Fatal gunshot wound of head
Non-fatal gunshot wound of left shoulder
Non-fatal gunshot wound or right back
Non-fatal gunshot wound of left arm
Gunshot wounds of each lung, aorta, liver, kidney, and brain with bilateral hemothoraces and
hemoperitoneum

O N W

CAUSE OF DEATH: Multiple Gunshot Wounds (minutes)

K -Spodi— -2

ARNOLD RUOSSELSON, M.D.
Forensic Pathologist

Dedicated to Community Service



NAME: Ronell Diangelo Foster CASE NO: 2018-0159

The autopsy is conducted at the Solano County Coroner’s Office in Fairfield, CA. The body is sealed in
a body bag sealed with blue Coroner seal #136649.

EXTERNAL EXAMINATION

The body is that of a normally developed, normally nourished male appearing the reported age of 33
years. The clothing on the body consists of a pair of blue jeans with a black belt at the level of the
mid-thigh, a black tennis shoe and white sock on the left foot, a black hooded sweatshirt that says
“California” on the front, a pair of plaid red boxer shorts, a black t-shirt and a white undershirt. A
matching shoe and a black sock are submitted with the body. The left ear is pierced and there is a
white metal stud with a large clear stone through the piercing. The right earlobe is pierced as well
and a matching earring is found in the body bag. Around the neck is a gold-colored necklace with a
gold-colored pendant. The pocket of the jeans are several candies and two small clear plastic bags,
one of which contains a white powder, the other which contains crystals. Examination of the
sweatshirt reveals a gunshot in the upper left front, a gunshot in the left sleeve, three holes on the
upper left back, one gunshot hole in the mid right back, and one hole on the right front. In the black
t-shirt, there are three bullet holes in the left back, one hole in the right back, one in the left sleeve,
one in the left shoulder, and one in the upper right front. The body measures 5’11” and weighs 169
pounds. The head is symmetrical. The scalp is covered with short black hair of normal male
distribution. There is a beard and mustache. The face is symmetrical. The irides are brown, and the
pupils are round and equal. The sclerae and conjunctivae are clear. The external ears, nose and lips
are normally developed. There is no evidence of fracture or hemorrhage of the nose or mouth. The
buccal mucosa and tongue show no lesions. The teeth are intact and in adequate repair. The ears
reveal no evidence of trauma or hemorrhage. The neck is symmetrical and the trachea is palpable in
the midline. The chest, abdomen, back, upper and lower extremities are normally developed. The
abdomen is slightly protuberant, and there are no visible abdominal scars. The external genitalia are
those of a normal adult male. There are no needle tracks in the antecubital fossae. There are no
transverse scars on the wrists. The hands, fingers, and fingertips are intact and reveal no trauma.
There are multiple tattoos on the body including “Valle” on the posterior left forearm, “CAT” on the
anterior left forearm, an unidentifiable word on the lateral left forearm, several tattoos on the left
side of the neck, a tattoo on the right side of the neck which says “Rene”, a tattoo on the posterior
upper right arm which appears to be a plant leaf and “Est 06”, an unidentifiable tattoo on the lateral
right forearm, several tattoos on the posterior right forearm, a tattoo on the posterior right hand,
and a tattoo on the posterior left hand.

EVIDENCE OF MEDICAL THERAPY

There are plastic patches on the right chest, the upper left flank, and the upper right flank. There are
EKG pads on the chest and abdomen.

EXTERNAL EVIDENCE OF INJURY

There are approximately seven abrasions on the anterior right knee measuring up to 2 cm. On the
medial mid lower left leg there is a deep linear 4 cm abrasion. On the right cheek, 3 cm lateral to the
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NAME: Ronell Diangelo Foster CASE NO: 2018-0159

right eye, there is a superficial 5 mm abrasion. On the right frontal scalp just above the hairline is a
deep 2 cm laceration.

There are seven gunshot wounds to the body. They are numbered 1-7 for convenience sake only.
There is no soot or stippling about any of the entry defects, making all seven gunshot wounds of
distant or indeterminate range.

Gunshot wound number 1 is a fatal gunshot wound through the abdomen and right chest. The entry
defect is located on the left lower quadrant of the abdomen at a point 49 cm below the top of the
shoulder and 16 cm to the left of the anterior midline. The entry defect is oblong measuring 1.2 cm.
There is a superior 3 x 5 cm abrasion. The projectile enters the left side of the abdomen. Passes
through the lower pole of the left kidney, passes through the abdominal aorta at the entry of the
right renal artery, passes through the right lobe of the liver, passes through the right hemidiaphragm,
passes through the base of the right lung, and ends up free in the lower right chest cavity where a full
metal jacketed, mushroomed, large caliber projectile is recovered. This projectile, and all recovered
projectiles, are given to Evidence Technician Dailey of the Vallejo P.D. The path of gunshot wound
number 1 is from the victim’s left to right and up.

Gunshot wound number 2 is a fatal gunshot wound of the left chest. The entry defect is located on
the lateral left mid back at a point 23 cm below the top of the shoulder and 15 cm to the left of the
posterior midline. The entry defect is round measuring 1 cm with a 2 mm symmetrical abrasion
margin. The projectile enters the left chest cavity through the lateral 5% rib and 5" intercostal space
leaving a large defect, passes through the left upper lung lobe and exits the left chest at a point 32 cm
below the top of the head and 1.5 cm to the left of the anterior midline. The exit defect is oblong and
measures 1.5 cm. The path of gunshot wound number 2 is from the victim’s left to right, back to
front, and up.

Gunshot wound number 3 is a fatal gunshot wound of the left and right chest. The entry defect
appears to be the same entry as the entry of gunshot wound 2. It then passes through the left lower
lung lobe, passes across the thoracic aorta just below the great vessels, passes through the right
upper lung lobe and exits on the posterolateral upper right chest wall at a point 18 cm below the top
of the shoulder, 25 cm to the right of the anterior midline. The exit defect is rectangular and
measures 2 cm. The path of gunshot wound number 3 is from the victim’s left to right, back to front,
and up.

Gunshot wound number 4 is a fatal gunshot wound of the head. The entry defect is located on the
superior left parietal scalp at a point 7.5 cm above the right ear. It is round measuring 6 mm. The
bullet enters the cranial cavity, passes across the left occipital lobe, passes across the pons, passes
across the right occipital lobe, and comes to rest in the right temple just above the right ear, where a
large caliber, copper-jacketed, mushroomed bullet is recovered. The path of gunshot wound number
4 is from the victim’s left to right and back to front.

Gunshot wound number 5 is a non-fatal gunshot wound to the back. The entry defect is located on

the lateral lower left shoulder at a point 10 cm below the top of the shoulder and 23 c¢m to the left of
the posterior midline. It is oblong measuring 1.5 cm. The projectile passes through the left shoulder
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NAME: Ronell Diangelo Foster CASE NO: 2018-0159

and comes to rest under the mid left clavicle, where a large caliber, copper-jacketed, mushroomed
projectile is recovered. The path of gunshot wound number 5 is from the victim’s back to front and
up.

Gunshot wound number 6 is a non-fatal gunshot wound to the right back. The entry defect is located
on the lateral mid right back at a point 27 cm below the top of the shoulder and 13 ¢m to the right of
the posterior midline. The entry defect is round measuring 6 mm with a 1 cm medial abrasion. The
bullet passes through the right scapula and exits on the lower anterior right shoulder 6 cm below the
top of the shoulder. The exit defect is rectangular measuring 2 cm. The path of gunshot wound
number 6 is from the victim’s back to front and up.

Gunshot wound number 7 is a gunshot wound of the left arm. The entry defect is located on the
posterior mid left forearm at a point 30 cm above the fingertips. The entry defect is oblong
measuring 2 cm. The bullet passes through the left forearm, fracturing the ulna, and exits on the
posterolateral left elbow 47 cm above the fingertips. The exit defect measures 2.5 x 6 cm. The bullet
then briefly passes through the skin of the posterolateral left elbow just 4 cm above the previously-
described exit leaving a 5 cm round defect. The path of gunshot wound number 7 is from the victim’s
right to left, back to front, and up.

Three other bullets are recovered outside the body; one on the right sleeve of the sweatshirt, one
from the right side of the t-shirt, and one lying freely in the body bag adjacent to the left side of the
neck. All three bullets are copper-jacketed, large caliber, mushroomed projectiles.

INTERNAL EXAMINATION
The body is examined using the thoraco-abdominal and posterior scalp incisions.
HEAD:

The reflected scalp shows several contusions in the midline from the frontal area to the vertex, and a
10 cm contusion in the left occipital scalp. The calvarium shows an entry defect approximately on the
left side of the vertex. There is a large linear fracture extending anteriorly and a large linear fracture
extending posteriorly from this entry defect. The base of the skull is unremarkable. The left temporal
muscle shows hemorrhage. On removal of the calvarium, there is no evidence of epidural, subdural,
or subarachnoid hemorrhage. The leptomeninges are thin and delicate. The tentorium, cerebellum,
and falx are intact. The vessels at the base of the brain have a normal configuration and show no
atherosclerosis. The brain is symmetrical and weighs 1458 grams. The convolutionary pattern is
smooth and symmetrical. There is no evidence of herniation or softening. Multiple coronal sections
show the previously-described wound path through the brain. The cerebellum, mid-brain, and
medulla show no abnormalities. The dura is stripped and reveals linear fractures in the left posterior
and right posterior cranial fossae, a fracture of the right orbital roof, a fracture and an exit defect in
the lateral right middle cranial fossa. The left orbital roof is intact and unremarkable.

Page 4

N N N B U

AANTMTI AT T TN MAATIRATATM . ool o o T



NAME: Ronell Diangelo Foster CASE NO: 2018-0159

NECK:

No abnormalities are noted in the anterior strap muscles, laryngeal cartilages, or cervical vertebral
column.

BODY CAVITIES:

The right pleural cavity contains 100 mL of blood, the left pleural cavity contains 125 mL of blood, and
the abdominal cavity contains an estimated 25 mL of blood. The pleural and peritoneal cavities are
free of adhesions. The pericardium is thin and translucent and encloses a small amount of clear fluid.
There are no pericardial adhesions. There is a gunshot wound through the right hemidiaphragm. All
organs are in their normal locations. The subcutaneous fat in the anterior abdominal wall measures
approximately % inch.

CARDIOVASCULAR SYSTEM:

The 342 gram heart has a normal configuration. The coronary arteries arise normally, and follow a
normal distribution. The coronary arteries show no arteriosclerosis. The endocardium, pericardium,
epicardium, myocardium, and cardiac valves are normal throughout. The papillary muscles and
chordae are normal. The aorta shows a normal pathway without arteriosclerosis, and the two
previously-described gunshot wounds.

RESPIRATORY SYSTEM:

The larynx and trachea are intact. The right lung weighs 256 grams and the left lung weighs 242
grams. The trachea-bronchial tree follows its normal anatomic pathway and contains blood. The
intrinsic pulmonary vessels are patent and reveal no thromboemboli. There is congestion in all lobes
of each lung. The cut surface discloses the previously-described gunshot wounds to each lung.

GASTROINTESTINAL SYSTEM:

The tongue, esophagus, stomach, small intestine and colon are unremarkable. The appendix is
present. The contents of the stomach consist of a moderate amount of partially digested food with
no identifiable pills.

HEPATOBILIARY SYSTEM:

The 1422 gram liver has a normal size and shape. There is a gunshot wound through the right lobe. It
has a normal consistency and a normal red-brown color throughout. The cut surface of the liver
shows no focal lesions. The gallbladder contains 5 mL of red-brown bile of normal viscosity. There
are no stones. The extrahepatic biliary system is patent.

PANCREAS:

The pancreas is normal.
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NAME: Ronell Diangelo Foster CASE NO: 2018-0159

ENDOCRINE SYSTEM:
The thyroid and adrenal glands are normal.
HEMOLYMPHATIC SYSTEM:

The 70 gram spleen has an intact capsule and normal parenchyma. The white pulp is not visible. The
lymph nodes are unremarkable.

URINARY SYSTEM:

The right kidney weighs 132 grams and the left kidney weighs 144 grams. The capsules are smooth
and strip with ease. Sectioning reveals normal cortices, except for a gunshot wound through the
lower pole of the left kidney, with distinct cortico-medullary junctions and normal renal pelves. The
ureters and bladder have a normal configuration and the bladder contains approximately 10 cc of
clear urine. The bladder mucosa is normal,

REPRODUCTIVE SYSTEM:

The prostate gland is normal to palpation.

MUSCULOSKELETAL SYSTEM:

The bony framework is well developed and well retained. The injuries have previously been
described. No additional evidence of fracture, trauma or other lesions is noted in the skeletal
structures. Cut surfaces of the muscles show no abnormalities.

SPECIMENS FOR HISTOLOGY:

Representative sections of the major organs are saved.

SPECIMENS FOR TOXICOLOGY:

Peripheral blood is submitted for drugs and alcohol. Left chest blood is retained. Urine and vitreous
humor are retained.

AUTOPSY WITNESS:
B. Caputo, Forensic Assistant.

S. Dailey, Vallejo P.D.
A. Dillon, Solano County DA
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SOLANO COUNTY CORONER'S OFFICE

Thomas A. Ferrara, Sheriff-Coroner
520 Clay Street

Fairfield, CA 94533

(707} 784-7500

CORONER CASE #

DEATH INVESTIGATION REPORT 18-0159

INCHIDENT INFORMATION

LAW ENFORCEMENT AGENCY WITH JURISDICTION: REPRESENTATIVE TITLE AND NAME: AGENCY CR#: O N/A

Vallejo Police Dept Corp. Botello 18-1786

DATE/TIME RECEIVED: NAME AND AGENCY OF PERSON REQUESTING DEPUTY CORONER; (Officer, Nurse, EMS, etc.)

2/14/2018 00:15 Stephanie Dailey, Vallejo Police Department

MANNER OF DEATH: DONOR CASE: DONOR BANK NAME: REMOVAL SERVICE:
Homicide No N/A C

DECEDENTINFORMATIHON
DECEDENT'S NAME (FIRST, MIDDLE, LAST): DOB: AGE: ETHNICITY: GENDER:
Ronell Diangelo Foster 11/18/1984 33 Black M

DECEDENT'S RESIDENCE ADDRESS: (Street. Citv. State, Zip) HOME PHONE#:

2 NSE NUMBER: DL STATE: SSNit:
CA

MARITAL STATUS: DISPOSITION OF DECEDENT'S PERSONAL PROPERTY:
Never Married Booked with Vallejo Police

RELATIONSHIP TO DECEDENT: z
Mother

DATE/TIME NOTIFIED: AGENCY:
2/14/2018 03:30 Vallejo

NEXT OF KIN NOTIFIED? IF NOTIFIED, BY WHOM:
Yes Vallejo Police

PLACE OF DEATH (Facifity Name or Address Location: [ SAME AS DECEDENT'S RESIDENCE O RESUSCITATIVE EFFORTS WERE MADE

Alley way /415 Carolina St, Vallejo, CA 94590 0 DEATH WAE OBVIOUE

DATE OF DEATH: PRONOUNCED BY: (Title, Name, ID #, and Agency LOCATION OF DECEDENT (MORTUARY NAME): O CMF
2/13/2018 Firefighter Paramedic Eric Angillo, P736, Vallejo Fire Wiggins-Knipp Funeral Home

TIME OF DEATH: HOW WAS DECEDENT IDENTIFIED: WHO MADE IDENTIFICATION (NAME/RELATIONSHIP):
19:51 Visually Corp. Botello / None

DATE/TIME LAST KNOWN ALIVE: | BY WHOM (NAME): ADDRESS: PHONE#:

CLOTHING DESCRIPTION

DECEDENT'S PRIMARY PHYSICIAN: £ UNKNOWN PHYSICIAN OFFICE #: DATE LAST SEEN: @0 UNK | PHYSICIAN WiLL SIGN D.C.:

MEDICAL / SOCIAL HISTORY: 0O UNKNOWN

FOUND MEDICATIONS: 0 NONE LOCATED

DRUG/ALCOHOL HISTORY: O UNKNOWN

If decedent’s death was the result of an accident / injury, pl complete the following:
DATE & TIME OF INJURY: LOCATION OF INJURY (ADDRESS): CITY: k3 COUNTY:
2/13/2018 415 Carolina St Vallejo 94590 N/A

DESCRIBE HOW INITIAL INJURY OCCURRED: 0 Motor Vehicle Accident - DECEDENT WAS: O Driver O Passenger O Pedestrian - DECEDENT WAS WEARING. O Seatbeli B FHeimat
The decedent was shot by another person.

VEHICLE MAKE/MODEL/COLOR: LICENSE PLATE NUMBER: DISPOSITION (TOW COMPANY NAME):
N/A N/A N/A

This case was reported to the Solano County Coroner's Office by Corp. Botello with the Vallejo Police Department.
The 33 year old decedent, Ronell Foster, was fleeing from Vallejo Police Officers after a call for service. A Vallejo
Police Officer deployed his taser striking the decedent which had no affect. The decedent charged towards the
officer and grabbed for his flashlight. The officer shot the decedent at close range. There were numerous

circular defects the the decedents back, cb{ast and side. The decedent was pronounced [dead at 1951 hours on 021318

—e /
REPORTING EMPLOYEE: 1D #: 74 APPROVED BY: r\ DATE:
L. SMITH / CORONER'S INVESTIGATOR E}/ ll()((l R. LAMB / SERGEANT A \l(,‘vk 3/27/2018
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SOLANO COUNTY CORONER'S OFFICE

Thomas A. Ferrara, Sheriff-Coroner
520 Clay Street

Fairfield, CA 94533

(707} 784-7500

CORONER CASE #

DEATH INVESTIGATION REPORT 18-0159

by Vallejo Fire fighter/ Paramedic Eric Angelo. The decedent was handcuffed initially but the handcuffs were
removed prior to being transported to the county morgue for an exam. I had the decedents body bag sealed.

vorue [
Role ame DOB Sex Race
Address F Height  Weight

Employer Work Phone Cell Phone Occupation

State/DL#

L]
REPORTING EMPLOYEE: 1D #: - APPROVED BY: V4 (:{/\‘ DATE:
L. SMITH / CORONER'S INVESTIGATOR ! Le l R. LAMB /SERGEANT /{,,'\/ ’ 3/27/2018




SOLANO COUNTY CORONER'S OFFICE

Thomas A. Ferrara, Sheriff-Coroner
520 Clay Street ‘
Fairfield, CA 94533

(707) 784-7500

DEATH INVESTIGATION REPORT 180150

021418\ 0015 hours: This case was referred to the Coroner's Office by Vallejo Police Department CSI, Stephanie
Daily, as a death due to gunfire. I contacted Stephanie via telephone who told me the following in summary:

Stephanie stated the 33 year old decedent, Ronell Foster, was being pursued on foot by a Vallejo Police Officer.
There was an altercation which took place in a small alley way between the officer and the decedent. The officer
shot the decedent numerous times. The decedent was pronounced dead at 1951 hours on 021318 by Vallejo Fire

fighter/ Paramedic Eric Angillo. Stephanie stated they were ready for the decedent to be transported to the county
morgue. I informed her I would be en route to the scene.

021418\ 0115 hours: I contacted J. Morris Removal Service and requested they respond to the scene, pick up the
decedent and transport him to the county morgue.

021418\ 0145 hours: 1 arrived on scene and contacted numerous members of the Vallejo Police Department and of
the District Attorney's Office. I made the following observations:

In a small alley way in between numerous apartments, I observed the decedent lying on the ground with handcuffs
on. There were medical devices affixed to his chest. There was blood on and around the decedents head and chest. I
observed numerous circular defects to his chest, side and back. All of the decedents property was taken by the
Vallejo Police Department.

The decedent was wearing a sweatshirt, t-shirt, boxers, jeans, a belt shoes and socks. Rigor mortis was present. Post
mortem lividity was present and consistent with the decedent’s position. Itook numerous photos of the decedent
and the scene. The handcuffs were removed from the decedent.

021418\ 0218 hours: I had the decedent’s body bag sealed with blue Coroner seal #136649 at 0218 hours. Itook
two additional photos of the seal and later entered all of the images into the digital database at the Sheriff’s Office.
J. Morris personnel transported the decedent to the County morgue.

021418/ 0330 hours: received a phone call from a Vallejo Police Investigator stating the decedents mother,
i was at the lobby of the Vallejo Police Department and had been notified of the death. They gave her my
phone number and stated I would speak with her in the morning.

Later in the day, I met with-outside the Coroner's Office. I spoke with her and gave her some suggestions
regarding final disposition. I left her with other members of her family and encouraged her to contact me if she

needed and assistance.
021418\ 1300 hours: I took numerous x-rays of the decedent prior to the autopsy.

021518 \ 0824 hours: Brynne Caputo, Forensic Technician, cut the seal on the decedent’s body bag and readied him
for examination. Dr. Arnold Josselson, Forensic Pathologist, performed an autopsy on the decedent and determined
the cause of death was due to multiple gunshot wounds. The manner of death was due to homicide.

021618\ 1208 hours: The decedent was released to Wiggins Knipp Funeral Home for final disposition.

031218\ 0653 hours: I received the decedent’s toxicology results from Alere Forensics At Redwood Toxicology
Laboratory. The results indicated the decedent had alcohol, amphetamines, methamphetamine and
RE

PORTING EMPLOYEE: 1D #: .. APPROVED BY: 7/ L L \ DATE:
L. SMITH / CORONER'S INVESTIGATOR )Lb (l R. LAMB / SERGEANT 2% v 3/27/2018
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SOLANO COUNTY CORONER'S OFFICE

Thomas A. Ferrara, Sheriff-Coroner
520 Clay Street

Fairfield, CA 94533

(707) 784-7500

DEATH INVESTIGATION REPORT CORGHER CAsE ¥

18-0159

marijuana metabolite present in his blood. See toxicology report for details.

Note: The decedent's fingerprints were electronically scanned and submitted to the Cali
and the FBI. The decedent was identified as Ronell Foster. The CII number assigned is

fornia Deiartment of Justice

REPORTING EMPLOYEE:
L. SMITH / CORONER'S INVESTIGATOR

10 #:
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ALERE FORENSICS AT REDWOOD TOXICOLOGY LABORATORY

3650 Westwind Bivd. Santa Rosa, CA 95403
Phone 707-570-4455 FAX 707-703-1 318

auags Forensics

Alere is now Abhott

FORENSIC LABORATORY REPORT

Agency #18-0159 AF #2018-000129
To: Brynne Caputo
Solano Gounty Sheriff's Department

Sample Collection Date: February 15, 2018

Decedent: Ronell Foster

The following evidence was submitted to the Laboratery by a representative of the Solano County Sheriffs

Department on 2/20/2018 via Courier;

Submission 01: One sealed plastic box containing one tube of blood marked in part "Ronell Foster.”

ltem # 01-A: One gray top tube with approximately 4 mL of peripheral blood.
rvice ue

FP222B - Expanded Pnj (Confirm) - Blood
Drug Screen Results - ELISA
Drug Screen Classification Resuilt Limit of Detection
Amphetamine Positive 20.0 ng/mL
Barbiturates Not Detected 1.0 meg/imL
Benzodiazepines Mot Detected 25.0 ng/mL
Buprenorphine Not Detected 1.0 ng/mlL
Carisoprodol Not Detected 500.0 ng/mL
Cocaine Metabolite Not Detected 50.0 ng/mL
Fentanyl Mot Detected 1.0 ng/mL
Marijuana Metaholite Positive 10.0 ng/mL
Methadone Mot Detected 25.0 ng/ml
Methamphetamine Positive 20.0 ng/mL
Opiates Not Detected 10.0 ng/mL
Oxycodone Not Detected 5.0 ng/mL
PCP Not Detected 5.0 ng/mL
Tramadol Not Datected 50.0 ng/mL
Zolpidem Not Detected 5.0 ng/mt
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&~ Forensics

Confirmation{Screen Results

Analyte Name Concentration Method Sample Type
Methamphetamine 702 ng/mL GC-MS Blood
Amphetamine 57 ngimL GC-MS Blood
Tetrahydrocannabinol (THC) 12.4 ng/mL LC-MS-MS Blood
11-hydroxy-THC (11-OH-THC) < 2 ng/mL LC-MS-MS Blood
11-nor-THC-9-carboxylic acid 5.0 ng/mL LC-MS-MS Blood
(THC-COOH)
Ethanol 0.08 grams % GC-Headspace Blood
Isopropanol Not Detected GC-Headspace Blood
Methanol Not Detected GC~Headspace Blood
Acetone Not Detected GC-Headspace Biood
Methamphetamine Positive LC-MS-MS Blood
Acidic/Neutral Drug Screen None Detected GC-MS Bload

Respectfully,

&Mm'“

Laureen J. Marinetti, Ph.D, F-ARFT
Laboratory Director

Date of Report: March 11, 2018

Alere Forensics at Redwood Toxicolkogy is accredited by The American Board of Forensic Toxicology (ABFT) and is
recognized by the State of California as a Title 17 Forensic Akohol Laboratory.

All samples, including the sample packaging, will be retained at the laboratory for one year after the date of report. After
one year, the samples and packaging will be destroyed unless the client requests that the samples be returned or an
alternate retention policy has been set up with the laboratory. The laboratory cannot ship controlled substances.

Comments
None
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